
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee

Enquiries to: Caroline Denyer
Telephone: 01706 924717
Email:             caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk
Date: Friday, 3 March 2017

Dear Councillor

Audit and Governance Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee 
to be held in Hollingworth B, Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number 
One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Monday, 13th March 2017 
commencing at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Audit and Governance Committee Membership 2016/17
Councillor Andy Bell
Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Aasim Rashid

Public Document Pack



Rochdale Borough Council

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Monday, 13th March 2017 at 6.15 pm

Hollingworth B, Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A
Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 4 - 5

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally 
give notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the 
form attached with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any 
matter where there is potential bias or predetermination in any 
business to be considered at the meeting and whether they 
should take part in decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism 
Act 2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they 
must declare the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; 
personal interest and/or prejudicial interest required of them 
and, in the case of any discloseable pecuniary interest or 
prejudicial interest, withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the item, unless permitted otherwise within the 
Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 6 - 9

To consider the minutes of meeting of Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 6th December 2016.

3.  Presentation - STAR Procurement 

Presentation by the STAR Director of Procurement, Lorraine 
Cox.

4.  Presentation - Risk Management 

5.  Grant Thornton - Grants Letter 2015 - 16 10 - 13

6.  Grant Thornton  -  Rochdale Borough Council Audit & 
Governance Committee Progress report and update 

14 - 34

7.  Grant Thornton - External Audit Plan 2016/17 35 - 55

8.  Internal Audit - Quarter 3 Report 56 - 72

9.  Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 73 - 100

10.  Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2016/17 101 - 104

11.  Governance Arrangements 2017/18 105 - 108



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 1



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 4



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 6th December 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Liam O'Rourke (Chair); Councillors Butterworth, Dearnley, 
James Gartside, Malcolm, Rashid; A. Taylor and A. Underdown (Independent 
Persons)

OFFICERS: P Kane (Director of Resources) D Wilcock (Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce)), I Corbridge, M Dixon, and C Denyer (Resources 
Directorate) and C Wolfenden (Neighbourhoods Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   G. Mills and J Bellard (Grant Thornton UK LLP)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Bell, Councillor Heakin and Councillor 
Joinson

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
23 There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
24 DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and 
Governance Committee held on 26th September 2016 be approved as a correct 
record.

PRESENTATION - PROCUREMENT
25 The Head of Internal Audit updated the Committee with regard to the 
development of a Corporate Dashboard in order to provide Members with relevant 
information to provide assurance that key performance indicators (KPIs) were on 
track or otherwise provide the facility to identify and challenge those areas which may 
not be in line with expectations, focusing specifically on measuring the achievement 
of the corporate objectives as outlined in the Corporate Plan. It had also been 
recognised that there was a need to ensure that there was clarity over those KPIs 
which Members may have a particular interest in and to ensure that appropriate 
processes were in place to ensure relevant and accurate information was being 
reported in support of the Dashboard.

At the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held on 26th September 
2016 Members had requested that the Head of Internal Audit develop an approach to 
provide assurance that the Borough’s economy is being supported by current 
procurement arrangements. In response to this it has been proposed that a 
Highways Contract Management Audit be undertaken in order to not only support the 
above developments, but also to provide assurance over the management of 
associated risks to feed into the annual audit opinion on the overall control 
environment that is given by the Head of Internal Audit within the Annual Governance 
Statement.

The audit was scheduled to commence in January 2017 with a target for completion 
before the end of March 2017.

DECIDED – that the presentation be welcomed and noted

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



PRESENTATION - RISK MANAGEMENT
26 DECIDED – that the consideration of the presentation on risk 
management be deferred to the next meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

INTERNAL AUDIT - QUARTER 2 REPORT 2016/17
27 The Head of Internal Audit reported to the Committee summarising the work 
of the Internal Audit Team during the second quarter period of 2016/17. 

This report was submitted to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the first quarter of 2016/17 on all Services 
within RBC. The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.

The Committee were advised of the details of planned audit reviews completed 
during quarter two which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinion 
together with a number of follow up reviews to previous audit reports with a red 
“limited assurance” opinion which were in progress, the outcomes of which will be 
reported to Members at the next meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee.

The Committee was also advised of the items of unplanned work which had been 
identified and the outcomes of these investigations.

DECIDED – that the Internal Audit Quarter 2 report be noted.

OPTIONS FOR APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR
28 The Head of Internal Audit introduced a report the purpose of which was to 
set out the options for the appointment of an external auditor 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) at Section 7 states that a 
“relevant authority must appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial 
year not later than 31 December in the preceding financial year.” The current external 
auditor contract for Grant Thornton was extended for a further 12 months to include 
the accounts for 2017/18. Therefore for the Council the appointment of an auditor 
must be completed by 31 December 2017 for the audit year 2018/19. 

The report set out the three broad options through which the appointment of an 
external auditor may be achieved.  

The Committee was advised that the preferred option across the Greater Manchester 
Councils was to opt into the sector-led body, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd as 
detailed in Option 3 in the submitted report. This approach would allow for economies 
of scale and would avoid the costs, and associated administrative effort of the 
Council running its own procurement and management of contracts and also would 
avoid the requirement to set up an auditor panel with independent members.
                              
DECIDED – that the proposal for opting into the sector-led body, Public Sector 
Auditor Appointments Limited (PSAA), for the appointment of external audit 
services from 2017/18, as set out within Option 3 of the submitted report, 
subject to final agreement by the Greater Manchester Association of 
Metropolitan Treasurers (GMAMT) and subsequent approval by RBC Full 
Council be supported.

Page 6



RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - QUARTER 2 2016/17
29 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources which 
summarised Risk Management activities during Quarter 2 of the period 2016/ 17.

The work of RBC Risk Management is an ongoing requirement from the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations to produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) with Risk 
Management processes being an integral part of the AGS.

In considering the report the Committee requested that updates be provided to future 
meetings of the Audit and Governance Committee on the changes to highways 
maintenance programme resulting from the adoption of the new Department for 
Transport ‘Well Managed Highways – Code of Practice’.

DECIDED –that (1) the Risk Management – Quarter 2 2016/17 progress report 
be noted; and
(2) an update on the changes to the  highways maintenance programme 
resulting from the adoption of the ‘Well Managed Highways – Code of Practice’ 
be provided to the next meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee.

RBC 2015-16 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER
30 The Committee considered the Annual Audit Letter from Grant Thornton. The 
Letter arose from the work that had been carried out at Rochdale Borough Council 
('the Council') for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Letter was intended to provide a commentary on the results of the external 
auditors work, and to highlight issues that they wished to draw to the attention of the 
public. The letter was prepared in accordance with the National Audit Office Code of 
Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'.

The Committee noted the comments contained in the letter regarding the 
commitment shown by all the officers involved in supporting the improvements in the 
efficiency of the accounts and audit process.

DECIDED – that the Annual Audit Letter for the Council be noted.

GM AND RBC STRATEGY ALIGNMENT
31 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which outlined the connection between Rochdale Borough Council strategic priorities 
and those of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA).

The Annual Governance Statement, which had been approved by the Audit and 
Governance Committee on 8th August 2016, had referenced various strategies and 
plans that convey the Council’s vision and priorities and the Committee had 
requested that the Council demonstrate how its vision and priorities were aligned with 
the priorities for the Greater Manchester region as a whole. 

An exercise had been undertaken to identify and align priorities and objectives 
outlined in all the core, active Greater Manchester and Rochdale strategies and plans 
and these had been detailed in appendix 1 to the submitted report.

Rochdale’s key strategies and plans were found to be well aligned with those of the 
GMCA with the priorities clearly focused on improving the Borough whilst at the same 
time supporting the wider improvement of the region. Further work had been 
identified in order to align priorities where strategies and plans are currently 
unavailable and that improvements were required around the corporate frameworks.

Page 7



DECIDED – that (1) the report be noted; and
(2) the further work required to align the priorities where strategies and plans 
are currently unavailable and improvements required with regard to the 
corporate frameworks be supported.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
32 DECIDED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business since it is likely, that in view of 
the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure to them 
of exempt information, namely Information which is likely to reveal the identity 
of an individual.

CODE OF CONDUCT UPDATE
33 The Committee considered the report of the Assistant Director (Legal, 
Governance and Workforce) which provided an update in relation to complaints 
made pursuant to the Members’ Code of Conduct.

Under the Council’s Constitution, the Audit & Governance Committee is responsible 
for monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct. The report was 
intended to provide an overview of the complaints received in terms of numbers, brief 
details and outcomes.

DECIDED – that the update on complaints made in relation to the Members 
Code of Conduct be noted.

Page 8



Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Rochdale Borough Council

Audit & Governance Committee 

Progress Report and Update 

Year ended 31 March 2017
March 2017

Jackie Bellard
Engagement Lead
T 0161 234 6394
E  jackie.bellard@uk.gt.com

Gareth Mills
Senior Manager
T 0113 200 2535
E gareth.mills@uk.gt.com

Daniel Watson
Manager
T 0161 234 6344
E daniel.watson@uk.gt.com

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

2© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications:

• CFO Insights – reviewing council's 2015/16 spend (December 2016); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/cfo-

insights-reviewing-councils-201516-spend/

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities (December 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/

• New laws to prevent fraud may affect the public sector (November 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/new-laws-to-prevent-fraud-may-affect-the-public-sector/

• Brexit: local government – transitioning successfully (December 2016) 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either Gareth or Daniel.

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report 

on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your 

external auditors. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 
reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 
affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 14

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/


Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

3© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress as at 1 March 2017

2016-17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2016-17' by the 

end of April 2016.
April 2016 Yes

We issued the Fee Letter to management in April 2016 and presented 

it to the June 2016 Audit & Governance Committee.  The Letter  

confirmed the audit fee as £136,373 and grant certif ication fee as 

£18,600. There s no change in the scope of the areas of audit from 

2015-16.

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldw ork visit plan included:

• updated review  of the Council's control environment

• updated understanding of f inancial systems

• review  of Internal Audit reports on core f inancial systems

• early w ork on emerging accounting issues

• early substantive testing

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment.

December –

March 2017 In progress

Our interim accounts audit is underw ay. We expect to completed this 

part of our w ork programme by March 2017. Any f indings from our w ork 

w ill be reported in the Audit Plan.

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2016-17 financial statements.

March 2017 Yes

We have produced our Audit Plan to coincide w ith the March 2017

Audit & Governance Committee.  Whilst our interim w ork w ill not be 

fully complete at this time, w e w ill give a verbal update to the 

Committee on the latest progress on our interim w ork, to complement 

our Audit Plan.

P
age 15



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

4© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress as at 1 March 2017

2016-17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Final accounts audit
Including:

• audit of the 2016-17 f inancial statements

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts

• proposed Value for Money conclusion

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts 

against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom 2016-17.  

June – July 2017 Not yet started

We are due to receive draft accounts on 31 May 2017 and w e w ill 

commence our f inal accounts audit on 12 June 2017.

The findings from our f inal accounts audit w ork w ill be reported to the 

Audit & Governance Committee on 26 July 2017. This is in advance of 

the 30 September statutory deadline as the deadlines are due to be 

revised in 2017-18 to 31 July. 

We are w orking w ith the Council to achieve the revised deadlines a 

year in advance of the statutory changes.

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion
The scope of our w ork is unchanged from last year and is set out in 

the f inal guidance issued by the National Audit Off ice in November 

2015. 

The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council 

has made proper arrangements for securing economy, eff iciency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all signif icant 

respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it 

took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 

achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 

people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working w ith partners and other third parties.

January – July 

2017
In progress

We are undertaking our risk assessment alongside our interim w ork.  

We w ill summarise our planned w ork in our Audit Plan.

Betw een March and July w e w ill complete any further w ork required 

from the risk assessment on any signif icant risks identif ied in our risk 
assessment. 

We w ill report our f indings from this w ork in our Audit Findings Report 

at the July Audit & Governance Committee.

P
age 16



Technical Matters

P
age 17



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

6© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Highways network asset accounting update
On 14 November CIPFA/LASAAC announced a deferral of  the move to measuring the Highways Network Asset ('HNA') at depreciated 

replacement cost in local authority financial statements for 2016/17. This is due to delays in obtaining updated central rates information 

that was required for the valuations. 

CIPFA/LASAAC will issue an Update to the 2016/17 Code of  Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom to 

confirm this decision once it has completed the full due process before publication. CIPFA/LASAAC will review this position at its 

meeting in March 2017 with a view to implementation in 2017/18 and will consider whether central rates and the central assurance 

processes will be delivered in a timely manner to allow successful implementation. It expects that the 2017/18 Code will be on the same 

basis as planned for 2016/17, i.e. not requiring restatement of  preceding year information.

In August, CIPFA published the 'Code of  Practice on the Highways Network Asset (2016 Edition)' and additional guidance to aid the 

implementation process.

P
age 18



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

7© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Telling the story – Changes in 2016/17 CIPFA Code

CIPFA has been working on the 'Telling the Story' project, which aims to streamline the financial statements and improve accessibility to 

the user. This has resulted in changes to CIPFA's 2016/17 Code of  Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom ('the 

Code').

The main changes affect the presentation of  the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ('CIES'), the Movement in Reserves 

Statement ('MIRS') and segmental reporting disclosures. A new Expenditure and Funding Analysis has been introduced.

The key changes are:

• the cost of  services in the CIES is to be reported on basis of  the local authority's organisational structure rather than the Service 

Reporting Code of  Practice (SERCOP) headings

• an 'Expenditure & Funding Analysis' note to the financial statements provides a reconciliation between the way local authorities are 

funded and the accounting measures of  financial performance in the CIES

• the changes will remove some of  the complexities of  the current segmental note

• other changes to streamline the current MIRS providing options to report Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (previously 

shown as Surplus and Deficit on the Provision of  Services and Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure lines) and removal of  

earmarked reserves columns.

Other amendments have been made to the Code:

• changes to reporting by pension funds in relation to the format and fair value disclosure requirements to reflect changes to the

Pensions SORP

• other amendments and clarifications to reflect changes in the accounting standards.

P
age 19



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

8© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Delivering Good Governance

In April, CIPFA and SOLACE published 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)' and this applies to 

annual governance statements prepared for the 2016/17 financial year.

The key focus of  the framework is on sustainability – economic, social and environmental – and the need to focus on the longer term and 

the impact actions may have on future generations.

Local authorities should be:

• reviewing existing governance arrangements against the principles set out in the Framework

• developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of  governance, including arrangements for ensuring on-going effectiveness 

• reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and on how they have monitored the effectiveness of  their 

governance arrangements in the year and on planned changes. 

The framework applies to all parts of  local government and its partnerships and should be applied using the spirit and ethos of  the 

Framework rather than just rules and procedures.

P
age 20



Sector issues and developments

P
age 21



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

10© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

National Audit Office reports

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/overview-local-government/

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/

Below is a selection of reports issued during 2016 which may be of interest to Audit Committee members.  Please see the website for all 

reports issued by the NAO. 

P
age 22

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-troubled-families-programme-update/


Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

11© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Local Government Association 
Below is a selection of reports issued recently which may be of interest to audit committee members. Thee are available on the website:   

A councillor's workbook on neighbourhood and community 

engagement

11 January 2017

Neighbourhood and community engagement has a rightful place as one of the key 
processes involved in planning and decision making. As such, it should not be 

viewed d as an additional task, but as a core part of the business 

http://www.local.gov.uk/publications

The Local Government Association (LGA) Housing Commission was established to 

help councils deliver their ambition for places. It has been supported by a panel of 
advisers and has engaged with over 100 partners; hearing from councils, 

developers, charities, health partners, and many others. All partners agree that 
there is no silver bullet, and all emphasise the pivotal role of councils in helping 

provide strong leadership, collaborative working, and longer-term certainty for 
places and the people that live there.

22 December 2016

Building our homes, communities and future: The LGA 

housing commission final report

Provisional LG Finance Settlement for 2017/18

12 January 2017
The LGA has published its responses to the DCLG consultation on proposals for the local government 

finance settlement for 2017 to 2018 and for the approach to future local government finance settlements. 

http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/8150261/Local+Government+Finance+Settlement+1718+LG

A+response.pdf/dd8d32e1-ec9f-4314-8121-7aae2195f89f

P
age 23



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

12© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Local Government Association 
Below is a selection of reports issued recently which may be of interest to audit committee members. Thee are available on the LGA website:   

Stronger together: shared management in local government

29 November 2016

Around 45 councils across England share a chief executive and senior 
management team in about 20 different partnerships. Most also share at least 

some services. These councils have already delivered savings of at least £60 
million through greater efficiencies and the other benefits of collaboration, with 

more savings planned

http://www.local.gov.uk/publications

Adult social care funding: 2016 state of the nation report

2 November 2016

Adult social care is an absolutely vital public service that supports some of our most 
vulnerable people and promotes the wellbeing and independence of many more

Business Plan December 2016/November 2017

30 December 2016

Britain's exit from the EU means that we are reshaping the way our country is run. 
Our vision is one of a rejuvenated local democracy, where power from Westminster 

and from the EU is significantly devolved to local level and citizens feel they have a 
meaningful vote and real reason to participate in civic life and their communities.

P
age 24



Grant Thornton

P
age 25



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

14© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Integrated Reporting 

Looking beyond the report

The move away from reporting based on historic financial 

information is beginning to gain momentum and 

Integrated Reporting is now mandatory in some countries. 

In the UK, CIPFA proposed in their consultation 

document that the narrative report from 2017/18 reflects 

elements of the International Integrated Reporting 

Council's framework whilst the Treasury is encouraging 

public sector organisations to adopt Integrated Reporting.

Integrated reporting: Looking beyond the report was produced by 

our global Integrated Reporting team, based in the UK, 

New Zealand and South Africa, to help organisations 

obtain the benefits of Integrated Reporting. 

The International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) 

describes Integrated Reporting as "enhancing 

the way organisations think, plan and report the story of their 

business."

At Grant Thornton, we fully agree with this and, in our 

view, the key word is 'enhancing' because a lot of the 

elements to support effective Integrated Reporting are 

likely to be in place already. 

But anyone focussing purely on the production of the 

report itself will not reap the full benefits that effective 

Integrated Reporting can offer.

Instead, think of Integrated Reporting as demonstrating 

"integrated thinking" across your entire organisation, with 

the actual report being an essential element of it. 

Our methodology is based on six modules which are 

designed to be independent of each other.

1. Secure support – effective Integrated Reporting 

needs leadership from the top.

2. Identify stakeholders – who are they and how can 

you engage with them?

3. Identify the capitals for your organisation – what 

resources do you use to create value?

4. What do you have – and what do you need? – do 

you have the data you need and is it accurate?

5. Set limits and create boundaries – make sure your 

report is focussed.

6. Review and improve – Integrated Reporting is a 

continuous learning process.

Our approach to Integrated Reporting is deliberately 

simple; experience has shown us that this works best. 

Things are often only complicated because people made 

them that way.

Our experienced, independent teams can help you keep 

focused throughout the entire Integrated Reporting 

process and can support you, no matter what stage you are 

at. Please speak to your Engagement Lead if you would 

like to discuss this further.

Grant Thornton publications

Challenge question: 

• Have you thought about how 

the principles of Integrated 

Reporting can help your 

organisation become more 

focussed?

P
age 26



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

15© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Integrated Thinking and Reporting

Focusing on value creation in the 

public sector  

Grant Thornton has seconded staff to the International 

Integrated Reporting Council on a pro bono basis for a 

number of years.

They have been working on making the principles of 

Integrated Reporting  <IR> relevant to the public sector  

and co-authored a recent report by CIPFA and the World 

Bank: Integrated thinking and reporting: focusing on value creation 

in the public sector - an introduction for leaders.

Around one third of global gross domestic product (GDP) 

is made up by the public sector and this is being invested 

in ensuring there is effective infrastructure, good 

educational opportunities and reliable health care. In many 

ways, it is this investment by the public sector that is 

helping to create the conditions for wealth creation and 

preparing the way for the success of this and future 

generations.

Traditional reporting frameworks, focussed only on 

historic financial information, are not fit-for-purpose for 

modern, multi-dimensional public sector organisations. 

Integrated Reporting supports sustainable development 

and financial stability and enables public sector 

organisations to broaden the conversation about the 

services they provide and the value they create.

The public sector faces multiple challenges, including:

• Serving and being accountable to a wide stakeholder 

base;

• Providing integrated services with sustainable 

outcomes;

• Maintaining a longer-term perspective, whilst 

delivering in the short term; and 

• Demonstrating the sustainable value of services 

provided beyond the financial.

The <IR> Framework is principle based and enables 

organisations to tailor their reporting to reflect their own 

thinking and strategies and to demonstrate they are 

delivering the outcomes they were aiming for.

Integrated Reporting can help public sector organisations 

deal with the above challenges by:

• Addressing diverse and often conflicting public 

accountability requirements;

• Focussing on the internal and external consequences 

of an organisation's activities;

• Looking beyond the 'now' to the 'near' and then the 

'far';

• Considering the resources used other than just the 

financial.

The report includes examples of how organisations have 

benefitted from Integrated Reporting.

CIPFA Publications

Challenge question: 

• Have you reviewed the CIPFA 

guide to Integrated Reporting 

in the public sector?

P
age 27



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

16© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Apprentice Levy-Are you prepared?
What is the levy?

The UK has been struggling on productivity, now 

estimated to be 20% behind the G7 average. Developing 

apprenticeships is set to play a key part in tackling this and 

bridging the skills gap.

Announced by government in July 2015, the levy is to 

encourage employers to offer apprenticeships in meeting 

their skill, workforce and training needs, developing talent 

internally. The levy is designed to give more control to 

employers, through direct access to training funds and 

creation of apprenticeships through the Trailblazer 

process.

What is the levy?

From April 2017, the way the government funds 

apprenticeships in England is changing. Some employers 

will be required to pay a new apprenticeship levy, and 

there will be changes to the funding for apprenticeship 

training for all employers.

All employers will receive an allowance of £15,000 to 

offset against payment of the levy. This effectively means 

that the levy will only be payable on paybill in excess of £3 

million per year.

The levy will be payable through Pay As You Earn 

(PAYE) and will be payable alongside income tax and 

National Insurance.

Each employer will receive one allowance to offset against 

their levy payment. There will be a connected persons rule, 

similar the Employment Allowance connected persons 

rule, so employers who operate multiple payrolls will only 

be able to claim one allowance.

Employers in England are also able to get 'more out than they put 

in', through an additional government top-up of 10% to their levy 

contribution. 

When employers want to spend above their total levy amount, 

government will fund 90% of the cost for training and assessment 

within the funding bands.

The existing funding model will continue until the levy comes into 

effect May 2017. The levy will apply to employers across all sectors.

Paybill will be calculated based on total employee earnings subject 

to Class1 National Insurance Contributions. It will not include 

other payments such as benefits in kind. It will apply to total 

employee earnings in respect of all employees.

What will the levy mean in practice 

Employer of 250 employees, each with a gross salary of £20,000:

Paybill: 250 x £20,000 = £5,000,000

Levy sum: 0.5% x   = £25,000

Allowance: £25,000 - £15,000 = £10,000 annual levy 

How can I spend my levy funds?

The funding can only be used to fund training and assessment 

under approved apprenticeship schemes. It cannot be used on 

other costs associated with apprentices, including wages and 

remuneration, or training spend for the wider-team.

Through the Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS), set  up by 

government, employers will have access to their funding in the 

form of digital vouchers to spend on training. 

Training can be designed to suit the needs of your organisation and 

the requirements of the individual in that role, in addition to 

specified training for that apprenticeship. Training providers must 

all be registered with the Skills Funding Agency (SFA).

What do I need to start 

thinking about now?

• How much is the levy going 

to cost and have we 

budgeted for it?

• How do we ensure 

compliance with the new 

system?

• Which parts of my current 

spend on training are 

applicable to 

apprenticeships?

• Are there opportunities to 

mitigate additional cost 

presented by the levy?

• How is training in my 

organisation structured?

• How do we develop and 

align to our workforce 

development strategy

Grant Thornton update

P
age 28



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

17© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Off-payroll working in the public sector

The Chancellor's Autumn Statement 2016 speech 

delivered a number of changes that will impact the UK 

business environment and raise considerations for you as 

an employer. 

In particular, the Chancellor announced that the measures 

that were proposed in Budget 2016 that could affect 

services supplied through personal service companies 

(PSCs) to the public sector will be implemented. 

At present, the so-called IR35 rules require the worker to 

decide whether PAYE and NIC are due on the payments 

made by a PSC following an engagement with a public 

sector body. The onus will be moved to the payer from 

April 2017. This might be the public sector body itself, but 

is more likely to be an intermediary, or, if there is a supply 

chain, to the party closest to the PSC.

The public sector body (or the party closest to the PSC) 

will need to account for the tax and NIC and include 

details in their RTI submission. 

The existing IR35 rules will continue outside of public 

sector engagements.

HMRC Digital Tool – will aid with determining whether 

or not the intermediary rules apply to ensure of 

“consistency, certainty and simplicity”

When the proposals were originally made, the public 

sector was defined as those bodies that are subject to 

the Freedom of Information rules. It is not known at 

present whether this will be the final definition. 

Establishing what bodies are caught is likely to be 

difficult however the public sector is defined.

A further change will be that the 5% tax free 

allowance that is given to PSCs will be removed for 

those providing services to the public sector. 

Impact

• Increased costs

• Responsibility moved to the engager

• Increased risks for the engager

• Consider current arrangements in place

Areas / risks to consider

• Interim and / or temporary staff engaged through 

an intermediary or PSC

• Where using agencies ensure they’re UK based and 

operating PAYE

• Update on-boarding / procurement systems, 

processes and controls 

• Additional take on checks and staff training / 

communications 

• Review of existing PSC contractor population 

before April 2017 

• Consider moving long term engagements onto 

payroll

P
age 29



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

18© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Salary Sacrifice Arrangements-Autumn Statement

The Chancellor's Autumn Statement 2016 speech 

delivered a number of changes that will impact the UK 

business environment and raise considerations for you as 

an employer. 

In particular, the proposals from earlier this year to limit 

the tax and NIC advantages from salary sacrifice 

arrangements in conjunction with benefits will be 

implemented from April 2017. 

Although we await the details, it appears that there is a 

partial concession to calls made by Grant Thornton UK 

and others to exempt the provision of cars from the new 

rules (to protect the car industry). Therefore, the changes 

will apply to all benefits other than pensions (including 

advice), childcare, Cycle to Work schemes and ultra-low 

emission cars.  

Arrangements in place before April 2017 for cars, 

accommodation and school fees will be protected until 

April 2021, with others being protected until April 2018.

These changes will be implemented from April 2017.  

As you can see, there is a limited opportunity to continue 

with salary sacrifice arrangements and a need also to 

consider the choice between keeping such arrangements in 

place – which may still be beneficial – or withdrawing 

from them

What should you be thinking 

about?

• Review the benefits you offer  - particularly if you 

have a flex renewal coming up 

• Consider your overall Reward and Benefit strategy 

• Consider your Employee communications 

P
age 30



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

19© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Brexit

Planning can help organisations 

reduce the impact of  Brexit

Several months have passed since the referendum to leave 

the European Union (EU), during which there has been a 

flurry of political activity, including the party conference 

season.

After many years of relative stability, organisations will 

need to prepare themselves for a period of uncertainty and 

volatility and will need to keep their risk registers under 

constant review. The outcome of the US Presidential 

election in November 2016 has added to this uncertainty.

The High Court ruling that Parliament should have a say 

before the UK invokes Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty –

which triggers up to two years of formal EU withdrawal 

talks – will not, in our view, impact on the final outcome. 

There appears to be a general political consensus that 

Brexit does mean Brexit, but we feel there could be 

slippage beyond the original timetable which expected to 

see the UK leave the EU by March 2019. 

2017 elections in The Netherlands (March), France 

(April/May), and Germany (October/November) will 

complicate the Brexit negotiation process and timeline at a 

time when Brexit is more important for the UK than it is 

for the remaining 27 Member States

The question still remains, what does Brexit look like? 

While there may be acceptance among politicians that the 

UK is leaving the EU, there is far from any agreement on 

what our future relationship with the continent should be.

So, what do we expect based on what has happened so 

far?

Existing EU legislation will remain in force 

We expect that the Government will introduce a “Repeal 

Act” (repealing the European Communities Act of 1972 

that brought us into the EU) in early 2017.

As well as undoing our EU membership, this will 

transpose existing EU regulations and legislation into UK 

law. We welcome this recognition of the fact that so 

much of UK law is based on EU rules and that trying to 

unpick these would not only take many years but also 

create additional uncertainty.

Taking back control is a priority

It appears that the top priority for government is 'taking 

back control', specifically of the UK's borders. Ministers 

have set out proposals ranging from reducing our 

dependence on foreign doctors or cutting overseas 

student numbers. The theme is clear: net migration must 

fall.

Leaving the Single Market appears likely

The tone and substance of Government speeches on 

Brexit, coupled with the wish for tighter controls on 

immigration and regulation, suggest a future where the 

UK enjoys a much more detached relationship with the 

EU.

Potential existing examples for the UK's future 

relationship, such as the 'Norwegian' or 'Swiss' models, 

seem out of the question. The UK wants a 'bespoke deal'.

Given the rhetoric coming from Europe, our view is that 

this would signal an end to the UK's membership of the 

Single Market. With seemingly no appetite to amend the 

four key freedoms required for membership, the UK 

appears headed for a so-called 'Hard Brexit'. It is possible 

that the UK will seek a transitional arrangement, to give 

time to negotiate the details of our future trading 

relationship.

Grant Thornton update

Challenge questions: 

• Have you assessed the 

potential impact of Brexit on 

your organisation?

• Does your risk register include 

Brexit and is this regularly 

updated and reported?

P
age 31



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Rochdale Borough Council

20© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Brexit

This is of course, all subject to change, and, politics, 

especially at the moment, moves quickly.

Where does this leave the public sector?

After a relatively stable summer, we expect there will be 

increased volatility as uncertainty grows approaching the 

formal negotiation period.

Planning can help organisations 

reduce the impact of  Brexit

The chancellor has acknowledged the effect this may 

have on investment and signalled his intention to support 

the economy, delaying plans to get the public finances 

into surplus by 2019/20. 

We expect that there will be some additional government 

investment in 2017, with housing and infrastructure being 

the most likely candidates.

Clarity is a long way off. However, public sector 

organisations should be planning now for making a 

success of a hard Brexit, with a focus on:

Staffing – organisations should begin preparing for 

possible restrictions on their ability to recruit migrant 

workers and also recognise that the UK may be a less 

attractive place for them to live and work. Non-UK 

employees might benefit from a degree of reassurance as 

our expectation is that those already here will be allowed to 

stay. Employees on short term or rolling contracts might 

find it more difficult to stay over time.

Financial viability – public sector bodies should plan 

how they will overcome any potential shortfalls in funding 

(e.g. grants, research funding or reduced student numbers).

Market volatility – for example pension fund and 

charitable funds investments and future treasury 

management considerations.

International collaboration – perhaps a joint venture or 

PPP scheme with an overseas organisation or linked 

research projects.

Grant Thornton update

Challenge questions: 

• Have you assessed the 

potential impact of Brexit on 

your organisation?

• Does your risk register include 

Brexit and is this regularly 

updated and reported?

For regular updates on Brexit, please see 

our website:

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insig

hts/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-

the-debate/

P
age 32

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-planning-the-future-shaping-the-debate/


‘Grant Thornton’ ref ers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 

prov ide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 

more member f irms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member f irm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL does not prov ide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of , and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 

omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved | Draft

P
age 33



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

The Audit Plan for

Rochdale Borough Council
Year ended 31 March 2017

7 March 2017

Jackie Bellard

Engagement Lead

T 0161 234 6394

E jackie.bellard@uk.gt.com

Gareth Mills

Senior Manager

T 0113 200 2535

E gareth.mills@uk.gt.com

Daniel Watson

Manager 

T 0161 234 6344

E daniel.w atson@uk.gt.com

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 7



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales:No.OC307742.Registered office: Grant Thornton House,Melton Street, Euston Square,London NW1 2EP.
A list of members is available from our registered office. GrantThornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated bythe Financial ConductAuthority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member f irm of GrantThornton In ternational Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are nota worldwide partnership.Servi ces are delivered by the member f irms. GTIL and
its member firms are notagentsof, and do notobligate,one another and are not liable for one another’sacts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

This Audit Plan sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Rochdale Borough Council, the Audit and Governance Committee, an overview of the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the consequences of 

our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. It also helps us gain 
a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management. 

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 
(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to:

- give an opinion on the Council's financial statements
- satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 
view.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  It is 
not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which 

may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss 
occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit.

Yours sincerely

Jackie Bellard, Engagement Lead

Grant Thornton UK LLP

4 Hardman Square

Spinningfields

Manchester

M3 3EB

T +44 (0)161-953-6900

www.grant-thornton.co.uk

6 March 2017

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee

Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2017

Chair and Members of the Audit and Governance Committee
Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street

Rochdale
OL16 1XU

P
age 35



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Contents

Section Page

1. Understanding your business and key developments 4

2. Materiality 5

3. Significant risks identified 6

4. Other risks identified 8

5. Value for Money 11

6. Other audit responsibilities 14

7. Results of interim audit work 15

8. The audit cycle 17

9. Audit fees 18

10. Independence and non-audit services 19

11. Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 20

P
age 36



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

1. Understanding your business and key developments

Key challenges Financial reporting changesDevelopments

Key performance indicators 2016-17

Measure Value Trend

Controllable Net Budget £179,083k On-track

Savings plans for £15.9m £13,274k

£2,661k

Achieved

Mitigated

Capital spend £32,110k On-track

Our response

 We will discuss with you your progress in implementing the HNA requirements, highlighting any areas of good practice or conce rn which we have identified.

 We aim to complete all our substantive audit work of your financial statements by 25 July 2017.

 As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements accurately reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2016 -17 Code

 We will review the Council's progress  in managing its responsibil ities for public health and how it is working with partners, as part of our work in reaching our VFM conclusion.

 We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2016-17 through on-going discussions.

 Key members of your finance team are attending our technical accounting workshop on 14 March 2017.

Highways network asset (HNA)

On the 14 November, 2016 CIPFA/LASAAC announced a 

deferral of measuring the Highways Network Asset at 

Depreciated Replacement Cost in local authority financial 

statements for 2016-17. This deferral is due to delays in 

obtaining updated central rates for valuations. 

CIPFA/LASAAC will review this position at its meeting in 

March 2017 with a view to implementation in 2017-18. It 

currently anticipates that the 2017-18 Code will be on the 

same basis as planned for 2016-17, i.e. not requiring 

restatement of preceding year information.

Autumn Statement 

The Chancellor detailed plans 

in the Autumn Statement to 

increase funding for Housing 

and Infrastructure, and further 

extend devolved powers to 

Local Authorities. No plans 

were announced to increase 

funding for adult social care. 

The Council will form part of 

the pilot for the 100% 

retention of business rates 

from 2017-18 as announced 

in the Autumn Statement.

Financial Strategy

The Council has refreshed 

i t's medium term financial 

strategy (MTFS) which 

covers the period from 

2017-18 to 2021-22.  

The MTFS forecasts an 

ongoing budget gap of 

£31.1m a 31 March 2022 

with savings of £15.4m 

required in 2017-18 

alongside £6.8m use of 

reserves to achieve a 

balanced budget for the 

coming financial year.

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016-17 (the Code)

Changes to the Code in  2016-17 reflect aims of the 'Tell ing 

the Story' project, to streamline the financial statements to 

be more in l ine with internal organisational reporting and 

improve accessibil ity to the reader of the financial 

statements.

The changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in 

Reserves Statements, segmental reporting disclosures and 

a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis note has been 

introduced .The Code also requires these amendments to 

be reflected in the 2015-16 comparatives by way of a prior 

period adjustment.

Earlier closedown

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils 

to bring forward the approval and audit of financial 

statements to 31 July by the 2017-2018 financial year.

The Council has made very good progress to date achieving 

accounts sign-off on 8 August 2016 and plans to bring this 

forward again in 2016-17 to meet the statutory deadline a 

year in advance of the national timetable.

Integration with health 

sector

Wider transfers of 

responsibil ity for public 

health to local government, 

and more specifically Better 

Care Fund (BCF) plans and 

the associated pooled 

budgets have been 

operational since April 

2015.

Conv ersion of Academy 

Schools

Middleton Technology 

School achieved Academy 

status in September 2016 

and as such it now falls 

outside of Local Authority 

control.

The school’s assets will be 

de-recognised in the 

Council’s 2016-17 

accounts.

P
age 37



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016-17

2. Materiality
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but 

also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material effect on 

the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required(e.g. senior manager salaries and allowances). 

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in 

the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in 

the financial statements.

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Council. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial 

statements materiality based on a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £11,053k 

(being 2% of gross revenue expenditure from 2015-16). Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and we will advise you if we revise this during the 

audit.

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial"matters are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 

or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £553k.

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of 

lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. We have identified the following items 

where separate materiality levels are appropriate:

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level

Disclosures of off icers' remuneration, salary 

bandings and exit packages in the notes to the 

f inancial statements

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made.

£20,000

Related Party Transactions
Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made.

£20,000 (Individual misstatements w ill also be 

evaluated w ith reference to how  material they are 

to the other party).

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if  they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the f inancial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the f inancial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial inf ormation needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specif ic individual users, w hose needs may vary w idely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320)

P
age 38



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

3. Significant risks identified

An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement.

Significant risk Description Audit procedures

The revenue cycle 
includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue 

may be misstated due to the improper recognition of 

revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at 

Rochdale Borough Council, w e have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 

recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical framew orks of local authorities, including Rochdale Borough Council,

mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Management over-

ride of controls

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a non-

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of management 

over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

Work completed to date:

 Review  of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management

 Review  of journal entry process and w alkthrough of controls in place

Further work planned: 

 Review  of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management

 Testing of large and unusual journal entries back to supporting documentation

 Review  of unusual signif icant transactions.

"Signif icant risks often relate to signif icant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for w hich there is signif icant measurement uncertainty." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) . In making the review  of unusual signif icant transactions "the auditor shall treat identif ied signif icant related party transactions outside the entity's 

normal course of business as giving rise to signif icant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550)

P
age 39



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Significant risk Description Audit procedures

The expenditure 

cycle includes 

fraudulent 

transactions 

Practice Note 10 suggests that the 

risk of material misstatement due to 

fraudulent f inancial reporting that 

may arise from the manipulation of 

expenditure recognition needs to be 

considered, especially w here the 

body is required to meet targets.

Work completed to date: 

• We have performed a w alkthrough to gain assurance that the in-year controls w ere operating in accordance w ith our

documented understanding. No issues w ere identif ied as a result of this w ork.

Further work planned:

 Testing a sample of operating expenses for all months of the year to gain assurance that expenditure has been correctly

expensed during 2016-17

 Substantive testing of accruals

 Review  and testing of expenditure recognition policies

 Sample testing of post year end expenditure to gain assurance that all material liabilities relating to 2016-17 have been

captured w ithin the accounts.

Valuation of 

property, plant 

and equipment 

The Council revalues its assets on a 

rolling basis over a four year period. 

The Code requires that the Council 

ensures that the carrying value at the 

balance sheet date is not materially 

different from current value. 

This represents a signif icant estimate 

by management in the f inancial 

statements.

Work completed to date: 

• Review  of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used

Further work planned:

• Review  of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate

• Discussions w ith valuer about the basis on w hich the valuation is carried out and challenge of the key assumptions

 Review  of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their w ork

 Review  and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent w ith our understanding.

 Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's asset register and 2016-

17 accounts

 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how  management

has satisf ied themselves that these are not materially different to current value.

Valuation of 

pension fund net 

liability

The Council's pension fund asset and 

liability as reflected in its balance 

sheet represent signif icant estimates 

in the f inancial statements.

Work planned: 

• We w ill identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is not materially

misstated. We w ill also assess w hether these controls w ere implemented as expected and w hether they are suff icient to

mitigate the risk of material misstatement.

 We w ill review  the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary w ho carried out your pension fund valuation. We

w ill gain an understanding of the basis on w hich the valuation is carried out.

 We w ill undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made.

 We w ill review  the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the f inancial statements

w ith the actuarial report from the actuary.

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to date and 
the work we plan to address these risks.

P
age 40



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

4. Other risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 
cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, 
or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business.

Other risks Description of risk Audit procedures

Operating 

expenses

Creditors related to core activities 

(including suppliers) understated or 

not recorded in the correct period

(Operating expenses understated)

Work completed to date:

 Documented and confirmed our understanding of the controls in place in the accounts payable system

Further work planned:

• Review  the Council’s process for identifying and processing accruals

• Test a sample of expenditure transactions from months 1 – 12 to supporting evidence

• Test a sample of non-pay expenditure transactions from April 2017 to confirm they have been accounted for in the

correct year.

Employee 

remuneration

Employee remuneration accruals 

understated 

(Remuneration expenses not correct, 

payroll costs understated)

Work completed to date:

 Documented and confirmed our understanding of the controls in place in the payroll system

Further work planned:

 Test a sample of payroll transactions for months 1 – 12 to supporting evidence

 Reconcile total payroll costs from the payroll subsystem to the general ledger

 Perform a monthly trend analysis to identify months w ith unusually high or low  pay levels.

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of w hich often permit highly automated 

processing w ith little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of 

them." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) 

P
age 41



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Other risks identified (continued)

Other risks Description of risk Audit procedures

Changes to the 

presentation of local 

authority financial 

statements

CIPFA has been w orking on the ‘Telling the Story’ 

project, for w hich the aim w as to streamline the 

f inancial statements and improve accessibility to the 

user and this has resulted in changes to the 2016-17 

Code of Practice.

The changes affect the presentation of income and 

expenditure in the f inancial statements and 

associated disclosure notes. 

A prior period adjustment (PPA) to restate the 2015-

16 comparative f igures is also required.

Work completed to date:

 We have liaised w ith management, discussing this issue in a proactive manner in

advance of the year-end

 We have documented and evaluated the Council’s process for recording the required

f inancial reporting changes to the 2016-17 financial statements

 We have review ed the re-classif ication of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement (CIES) 2015-16 comparatives to ensure that they are in line w ith the Council’s

internal reporting structure

 We have review ed the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries w ithin the

Movement In Reserves Statement (MIRS).

Further work planned:

 We w ill test the classif ication of income and expenditure for 2016-17 recorded w ithin the

Cost of Services section of the CIES

 We w ill test the completeness of income and expenditure by review ing the reconciliation

of the CIES to the general ledger

 We w ill test the classif ication of income and expenditure reported w ithin the new

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the f inancial statements

 We w ill review  the new  segmental reporting disclosures w ithin the 2016-17 f inancial

statements  to ensure compliance w ith the CIPFA Code of Practice.

P
age 42



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Other risks identified (continued)

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 
will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include: 

• Heritage assets
• Cash and cash equivalents

• Trade and other receivables
• Borrowings and other liabilities (long and short term)

• Provisions
• Useable and unusable reserves

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes
• Statement of cash flows and associated notes

• Financing and investment income and expenditure

• Taxation and non-specific grants
• Schools balances and transactions

• New note disclosures
• Officers' remuneration note

• Leases note
• Related party transactions note

• Capital expenditure and capital financing note
• Financial instruments note

• Collection Fund and associated notes.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” 
(ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial statements. 

P
age 43



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

5. Value for Money

Background

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work for 2016/17 in November 2016. The guidance states that for local 
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the 
Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out opposite:

Sub-criteria Detail

Informed decision 
making

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and

applying the principles and values of sound governance

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and

performance information (including, where relevant,
information from regulatory/monitoring bodies) to

support informed decision making and performance
management

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the
delivery of strategic priorities

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system
of internal control

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable
delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory

functions
• Managing and utilising assets effectively to support the

delivery of strategic priorities
• Planning, organising and developing the workforce

effectively to deliver strategic priorities.

Working with 
partners and 

other third parties

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic
priorities

• Commissioning services effectively to support the
delivery of strategic priorities

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the
delivery of strategic priorities.

P
age 44



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Value for Money (continued)

Risk assessment

At the time of producing this Plan, we are carrying out our initial risk assessment based on the NAO's auditor's guidance note (AGN03). In our initial risk assessment, 
we are considering:

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial statements.

• any findings of other inspectorates and review agencies, for example Ofsted

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its Supporting Information

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your arrangements.

To date, we have identified a small number of significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. These are set out overleaf.

We will continue our review of your arrangements, including reviewing your Annual Governance Statement, before we issue our auditor's report.

Reporting

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our Audit Findings Report, due to be presented to the Committee in July, and in 
the Annual Audit Letter later in 2017. 

We will include our conclusion in our auditor's report on your financial statements which we are aiming to issue by 26 July 2017.

P
age 45



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Value for money (continued) 

We set out below the significant risks we have identified to date as a result of our initial risk assessment, and the work we propose to address these risks.

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address

Health & Social Care integration:

The Council is seeking to deliver w ide ranging changes and 

greater integration to ensure the f inancial sustainability of adult 

health and social care services. 

Working w ith partners from different organisations and service 

areas w ith potentially conflicting priorities, the project is 

complex and high profile. 

The Council is w orking closely w ith the CCG to deliver 

integrated health and social care to the Borough. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for w orking 

effectively w ith third parties to deliver strategic priorities, 

managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound 

system of internal control.

We w ill consider the arrangements put in place by the 

Council and the CCG to monitor the delivery of integrated 

health and social care w ithin the Borough.

We w ill maintain a dialogue w ith the Senior Leadership 

Team in relation to the on-going developments of Greater 

Manchester devolution and how  the impact of 'devo Manc' 

is being considered and managed by the Council.

Future Budget pressures: 

The Council's future budgets remain challenging w ith further 

anticipated funding reductions coupled w ith increasing 

demand and costs. 

The Council estimates that in the period to 2018-19 it w ill need 

to address a gross budget gap of £26.9m.  Of this amount, the 

Council has identif ied savings proposals of £17m, leaving a 

revised budget gap of £9.85m.

This links to the Council's arrangements for planning 

f inances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of 

strategic priorities and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making.

We w ill continue to monitor the Council's budgetary 

performance.  We w ill consider the processes established 

by the Council to identify, manage and monitor the savings 

proposals to address the budget gap.

P
age 46



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

6. Other audit responsibilities

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice in relation to your financial statements and arrangements for economy, efficiency and effectiveness we 
have a number of other audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that the disclosures made in your Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and

consistent with our knowledge of the Council.

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the financial statements on which we give an  opinion and that the disclosures included
in it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• We will carry out work on your  consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO instructions to auditors.

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, including:

- We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about your financial statements and consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to 

the financial statements

- issue of a report in the public interest

- making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of State.

• We certify completion of our audit.

P
age 47



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

7. Results of  interim audit work
The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Interim audit area Work performed and findings Summary / Conclusion

Internal audit We have completed a high level review  of internal audit's overall arrangements. 

Our w ork has not identif ied any issues w hich w e w ish to bring to your attention.

No issues have been identif ied from our review  of the w ork of 

internal audit. 

Entity level (Council w ide) 

controls

We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment relevant to 

the preparation of the f inancial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged w ith governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices.

Our w ork has not identif ied any material w eaknesses w hich are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's f inancial statements.

Walkthrough testing We have completed w alkthrough tests of the Council's controls operating in areas 

w here w e consider that  there is a risk of material misstatement to the f inancial 

statements.

These include the creditors, payroll and housing benefit systems, as w ell as 

controls surrounding journal entries to the general ledger.

Our w ork has not identif ied any issues w hich w e w ish to bring to 

your attention. Internal controls have been implemented by the 

Council in accordance w ith our documented understanding.

Our w ork has not identif ied any w eaknesses w hich impact on our 

audit approach.

Assurances from

management

As part of our planning w ork to consider the Council's governance arrangements, 
w e have raised a number of questions to management.

In common w ith previous years, the questions deal w ith a variety of issues such 

as internal control, risk management, fraud and litigation, and the potential impact 
of these areas on the Council's annual accounts.

We are aw are that responses management are being collated and 
expect to receive these in time for our f inal accounts audit visit in 
June 2017.

P
age 48



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Results of  interim audit work (continued)

Interim audit area Work performed and findings Summary / Conclusion

Journal entry 

controls

We have review ed the Council's journal entry policies and procedures as part of determining 

our journal entry testing strategy and have not identif ied any material w eaknesses w hich are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's control environment or f inancial statements.

Our w ork on journal entries to date has not identif ied any issues w e 

w ish to highlight for your attention.

Group accounts 

boundary 

assessment

The Council has a number organisations w hich it has relationships w ith to determine w hether 

group accounts w ere required.  The Council is currently assessing its subsidiaries, associates 

and joint ventures to consider w hether group accounts w ould be required. We have had initial 

discussions w ith the Council and confirmed no changes are expected.

We w ill review  the Council’s formal assessment regarding group 

accounts once it is concluded.

Register of 

Interests

We have review ed the Council’s assessment of related parties for completeness. Our w ork did 

not identify any gaps in the information held by the Council.

The Council w ill use this information as the basis of identifying potential related party 

transactions for disclosure in the f inancial statements.

We are satisf ied that the Council has identif ied a complete listing of 

potential related parties from their review .

We w ill complete testing of related party disclosures in the f inancial 

statements as part of the f inal accounts visit.

Early closedown

of accounts

Working in close liaison, both the Finance team and ourselves have put procedures in place to 

again bring forw ard the timetable for producing the accounts and delivering the audit to be in 

line w ith the new  requirements set out in the Local Audit and Accountability Act tw o years 

ahead of the required implementation of 31 July 2018.

The w ork completed by the Council again included a "soft close" of the ledger as at the end of 

January, allow ing us to audit the f irst ten months of transactions at the interim stage of the 

audit.

The Finance team are on track to provide us w ith draft unaudited accounts on 31 May 2017. 

We aim to report the results of our w ork in our Audit Findings (ISA260) Report at the Audit and 

Governance Committee on 26 July 2017.

The level of w ork performed during our interim audit gives a strong 

foundation to take into our f inal accounts audit visit in June and 

July.  

Should w e achieve our intended sign off date of on or around 26 

July, this w ill be a substantial achievement, bringing forw ard the 

sign off date by more than tw o months since 2014.

It w ould effectively w ould mean the Council has achieved an end of 

July accounts completion a year in advance of the statutory 

deadline commencing in 2018.

Housing Benefits 

system: 

parameters

We have agreed the parameters in the housing benefit system to the 2016-17 rates as notif ied 

in the DWP Circular.

Our review  noted the Council had correctly updated its parameters 

in line w ith the Circular.

In addition, w e w ill also perform sample testing of housing benefit 

payments throughout 2016-17 to ensure payments have been 

appropriately calculated and accounted on a materially accurate 

basis.  A summary of our benefits testing w ill be included in our 

ISA260 Report to the Committee in July.

P
age 49



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

8. The audit cycle

The audit timeline

Key dates:

Audit phases:

Year end: 

31 March 2017

‘Clearance’ meeting: 

20 July 2017

Audit committee: 

26 July 2017

Targeted Sign off by: 

31 July 2017

Planning visit:

December 2016

Interim audit: 

February – March 2017

Final audit visit:  

w /c 12 June 2017

Completion 

July 2017

Key elements

 Planning meeting w ith management to

inform audit planning and agree audit

timetable

 Issue audit w orking paper

requirements to management

 Discussions w ith those charged w ith

governance and internal audit to

inform audit planning

 Document design effectiveness of key

accounting systems and processes

 Issue Progress report to management

and Audit Committee

Key elements

 Review  of key judgements and

estimates

 Early substantive audit testing

 Initial Value for Money risk

assessment

 Discuss draft Audit Plan w ith

management

 Issue the Audit Plan to management

and Audit Committee

 Meeting w ith Audit Committee to

discuss the Audit Plan.

Key elements

 Audit teams onsite to

complete detailed audit testing

 Weekly update meetings w ith

the f inance team to ensure ‘no

surprises’ in our Audit

Findings Report and that

issues are raised and

resolved on a timely basis

 Review  of Annual Governance

Statement

 Review  of Going Concern

assumption

 Review  of Value for Money

arrangements.

Key elements

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management

 Meeting w ith management to discuss

Audit Findings

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit

Committee

 Audit Findings presentation to Audit

Committee

 Finalise approval and signing of

f inancial statements and audit report

 Submission of WGA assurance

statement by 30 September

 Annual Audit Letter to be drafted and

discussed w ith the Chief Executive

and Director of Resources in October

2017.

Debrief: 

September 

2017

P
age 50



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

Fees

£

Council audit 136,373

Grant Certification 18,600

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 154,973

9. Audit Fees

Our fee assumptions include:

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 
request list

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 
changed significantly

 The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 
help us locate information and to provide explanations

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 
working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly.

Grant certification

 Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 
certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited

 Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.

What is included within our fees

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your business

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 
finance community

 Regular sector updates

 Constructive feedback on your people and your processes

 Ad-hoc telephone calls and queries

 Technical briefings and updates

 Regular contact to discuss strategy and other important areas impacting across our client 
base

 A review of accounting policies for appropriateness and consistency

 Annual technical updates for members of your finance team

Fees for other services

Fees for other services detailed on the following page, reflect those agreed at the time 
of issuing our Audit Plan. Any changes will be reported in our Audit Findings Report 

and Annual Audit Letter.

P
age 51



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

10. Independence and non-audit services

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of matters relating to our independence. In this context, we disclose the following 
to you:

• The CFO Insights and Place Analytics non-audit related services detailed in the table below, are performed by Grant Thornton staff who are not part of the audit team.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have 

complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethica l Standards.

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following audit related and non-audit 

services were identified for the Council for 2016-17:

The above services are consistent with the Council's policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services (to be) undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP (and Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms) in the 

current financial year. Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit 

Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.  This will be presented to the Committee in July 2017.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £ Planned outputs

Audit related:

Certif ication of Teacher’s 

Pension Return

4,200 Auditor’s report on the Teacher’s Pension Return

Non-audit related:

CFO Insights and Place 

Analytics

22,500 CFO Insights and Place Analytics are online softw are services that enable users to rapidly analyse, segment and visualise 1,000s of 

data sets to understand relative performance and provide a local authority w ith rapid insights related to f inancial performance, socio-

economic factors and service outcomes. 

CFO Insights is a Grant Thornton & CIPFA collaboration giving instant access to f inancial performance, services outcomes and socio-

economic indicators for local authorities. Place Analytics enables an authority to benchmark any local authority across 5,000

socioeconomic measures and understand places and local populations in great detail.

Management w ill be trained in the use of the system tools.  The tools w ill provide information and insight that w ill help inform decision 

making by management. It w ill be the responsibility of management to provide informed interpretation of the information. The scope of 

our service does not include making decisions on behalf of management or recommending or suggesting a particular course of action 

for management. 

P
age 52



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council |  2016-17

11. Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management & those 

charged w ith governance



Overview  of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications



View s about the qualitative aspects of the entity's accounting and 

f inancial reporting practices, signif icant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and w ritten representations that have been sought



Confirmation of independence and objectivity  

A statement that w e have complied w ith relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, relationships and other 

matters w hich might  be thought to bear on independence. 

Details of non-audit w ork performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

netw ork f irms, together w ith fees charged.  

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

 

Material w eaknesses in internal control identif ied during the audit 

Identif ication or suspicion of fraud involving management and / or 

others w hich results in material misstatement of the f inancial 

statements



Non compliance w ith law s and regulations 

Expected modif ications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Signif icant matters arising in connection w ith related parties 

Signif icant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as w ell as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters w hich w e are required to communicate w ith those 

charged w ith governance, and w hich w e set out in the table opposite.  

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

w hile The Audit Findings w ill be issued prior to approval of the f inancial statements  and 

w ill present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together w ith an 

explanation as to how  these have been resolved.

We w ill communicate any adverse or unexpected f indings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor w e are responsible for performing the audit in accordance w ith ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), w hich is directed tow ards forming and expressing an opinion on the f inancial 

statements that have been prepared by management w ith the oversight of those charged 

w ith governance.

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://w ww.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/)

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, w e have a broad remit 

covering f inance and governance matters. 

Our annual w ork programme is set in accordance w ith the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

w ork (https://w ww.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our w ork considers the 

Council's key risks w hen reaching our conclusions under the Code. 

The audit of the f inancial statements does not relieve management or those charged w ith 

governance of their responsibilities.

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how  the Council is fulf illing these responsibilities.

P
age 53

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership. 

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the contex t requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

grant-thornton.co.uk

P
age 54



Subject: Internal Audit - Quarter 3 Report Status:  Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Finance

Date: Monday, 13 March 2017
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email: ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Ian Corbridge

Tel: 01706925452

1 Purpose of Report

1.1      This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the third 
quarter of 2016/17.

2 Recommendations

2.1       Report for information.

3 Background

3.1      This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the third quarter of 2016/17 on all 
Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by the 
UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Alternatives considered

3.2       Not applicable.

4 Financial Implications

4.1      If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
Internal Audit recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified 
during reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance 
and governance.

5  Legal Implications

5.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



6 Personnel Implications

6.1       There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1       This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 
governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly 
throughout this period of significant change.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1       The only implications on risk are those issues which have been highlighted by 
Internal Audit during the quarter. In this regard, these risks will be mitigated by 
completion of the actions agreed with management and summarised within this 
report.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1       Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2       Equality/Community Impact Assessments

            There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

10. Risk Based Audit Approach

10.1 Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal 
control environment, risk management and governance processes for the 
Council as a whole, as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. A risk based 
approach is taken within individual audit reviews, embracing operational and 
management controls and the wider business risks. This allows an opinion to 
be expressed on risk identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems 
in place to manage those risks. 

10.2 In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under review. 
These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control 
systems in operation are in need of significant improvement.

Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, 
opportunities exist to improve the management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks 
effectively.

Page 56



10.3 In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with the 
assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a timely 
basis, any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited assurance will be 
highlighted within section 12 of this report. These will be subject to specific 
discussion and challenge by Members with senior officers from the relevant 
Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will perform a formal follow up audit within a 
six month period or sooner if the due date for completing the agreed actions is 
earlier and report back to the Audit and Governance Committee with our 
findings.

10.4 In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm 
completion once the due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation will 
be reported to the Committee for further consideration. If some of the 
recommendations have not yet been actioned, Internal Audit will request 
reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by which the action 
should be completed. The current status of the implementation of audit 
recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is highlighted within 
Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the Members. Whilst in 
some cases implementation has not been achieved by the originally agreed 
dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable explanations to support the 
delays incurred and will continue to monitor progress through to the revised 
dates proposed by management. As such, there are no matters to bring to the 
attention of Members at this stage.

10.5 Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations raised are received within one month of the 
issue date. Internal Audit actively follows up with management via an 
escalation process to ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a timely 
manner. At present, there are no draft reports where responses are still 
outstanding beyond the agreed period.

11 Planned Work Completed During Quarter Three
11.1 Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed during 

quarter three which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinion. 
Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with a specific 
focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority.

12 Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up Audits
Primary School Follow Up – Previously Limited Assurance
  (Assistant Director - Early Help and Schools)

12.1   In July 2016 an audit was undertaken on a primary school which highlighted 
weaknesses in fundamental internal controls and a limited assurance opinion 
was given. A substantial number of recommendations were made, including 14 
of medium priority, to address improvements that needed to be made to the 
system of internal control to ensure it aligns with best practice. Specific areas of 
concern included:

 There was a lack of documentary evidence that key spending decisions 
had been discussed and approved by Governors;

Page 57



 There was no independent review of the holiday club’s records;
 The register of interests was not up to date, with declarations not having 

been completed by Governors;
 The Development Plan did not include costings of all proposed activities. 

A comprehensive plan will help to ensure that resource implications are 
considered during the budget setting process;

 Official orders were not raised in all instances to support purchases. 
Therefore it was unclear whether the availability of budget was checked 
prior to purchasing or that purchases were authorised by appropriate 
individuals in accordance with their delegated limits;

 Segregation of duties was not in place in relation to the breakfast club 
and staff meals income;

 The school was holding amounts of cash in the safe in excess of the 
maximum insured amount; and

 The Charging Policy was not being kept up to date.

12.2 A follow up audit concluded that the majority of agreed actions have now been 
fully implemented such that we would revise our audit opinion to Substantial 
Assurance. It was noted that two actions were due to be completed by the 
spring term, namely to:

 Document the school meals arrears policy; and
 Develop skills matrices for the Governors and schools staff.

No further follow up visit is now considered necessary given the significantly 
improved controls now in place at the school.

Secondary School Follow Up – Previously Limited Assurance
  (Assistant Director - Early Help and Schools)

12.3 In July 2016 an audit was completed on a secondary school which highlighted 
significant weaknesses in the systems of control and a limited assurance opinion 
was given. 4 high priority and 12 medium priority recommendations were agreed 
to address the issues raised and bring controls in line with best practice. Specific 
areas of concern included:

 Budget monitoring reports needed to be enhanced to ensure they 
reflected the current position of the school and therefore provided more 
effective support for decision making;

 Cash flow forecasts were not being produced which may increase the 
risk of budgetary pressures or unnecessary bank charges;

 The number of bank accounts and petty cash floats maintained within 
the school should be reviewed and rationalised;

 The budget plan should be subject to ongoing review and challenge to 
ensure it remains achievable;

 The Finance Policy and Procedure Manual should be updated to ensure 
they reflect current practices;

 The school must ensure insurance limits are not breached and income is 
regularly banked;

 Unofficial funds in place at the school should be subject to an annual 
audit; and

  A clear link needs to be established between priorities within the School 
Development Plan and expenditure decisions to enable more effective 
monitoring of budget allocation and associated expenditure.

Page 58



 
12.3 A follow up audit concluded that the majority of agreed actions have now been 

fully implemented such that we would revise our audit opinion to Adequate 
Assurance. It was noted that 3 medium priority recommendations were still in 
progress:

 Establishing a formal service level agreement to support ICT services 
provided to the school;

 Ensuring the School Fund accounts are subject to a formal audit on an 
annual basis; and

 Updating the School Development Plan to ensure it includes costings.

12.4 A further audit will be completed in 2017 as part of the 2017/18 Audit Plan to 
ensure that the above actions have been completed 

Quality Assurance Framework Follow Up – Previously Limited Assurance
  (Director of Children’s Services)

12.5 The Quality Assurance Framework (QAF) was introduced in December 2013 as 
a management tool to monitor the quality of social care work throughout the 
Children’s Social Care Service. Numerous different audits and reviews were 
specified for managers and Heads of Service to carry out and report on, 
ultimately to a monthly Performance Clinic led by the Assistant Director. This 
will provide for a challenge on performance statistics and any areas of non-
performance or failure and thereby prompt Service improvement. The scope of 
the audit undertaken in 2015 focused on evaluating the effectiveness of the 
QAF and the extent to which the actual operation and implementation of the 
QAF complied within its published requirements for best practice across the 
main areas of service.

12.6 The audit highlighted many areas of good practice arising from the 
development of the QAF, including the establishment of various guidance 
documents and practice standards against which quality can be managed and 
assessed. Furthermore a number of areas had completed much of the planned 
programme with appropriate reporting and outcomes resulting in updates to 
policies and procedures. However, in spite of this, Internal Audit issued a 
‘limited’ assurance opinion based on the overall scope and impact of work 
carried out under the QAF in the first year of its introduction. This reflects the 
fact that, at this time, the outputs from the QAF could not be relied upon as a 
robust measure of quality assurance. For further clarification, this opinion was 
based on the ability of the QAF to measure quality and was not a judgment on 
the actual quality of social work delivered. 

12.7 At the time of the audit it was acknowledged by both Internal Audit and senior 
management within the Service that the development of the QAF was still a 
‘work in progress’ and the outcome of the audit was not unexpected at that 
early stage. Since then, the QAF has been significantly reassessed, revised 
and re-launched in response to both audit recommendations and Service 
developments. A follow up audit was completed this quarter to evaluate the 
QAF in its present state and concluded that Substantial Assurance can now be 
given, confirming that there is now a sound system of control in place to 
manage risks effectively.

Page 59



Subject Access Requests – Limited Assurance
  (Director of Neighbourhoods)

12.8 The Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) gives anyone the right of access to 
request access to their personal information. Individuals may exercise this right 
by making a written ‘subject access request’ (SAR). Upon submitting a written 
request and paying the appropriate fee, the Council must respond to the 
request within 40 calendar days. This audit focused on providing assurance 
that the Council processes SARs in accordance with the requirements of the 
DPA with reference to the Information Commissioners Office Subject Access 
Code of Practice.

12.9 The audit highlighted many areas of good practice within Council processes 
including the provision of training (both internal and external), and the 
availability and communication of guidance and information to officers. 
However, as a result of the findings from the audit testing completed, it was 
evident that not all agreed procedures were being adhered to and there was 
need to strengthen processes and controls already in place, specifically through 
more direct oversight by the Information Governance Unit. As a consequence 
of this Internal Audit were only able to provide limited assurance that risks were 
being mitigated. 

12.10 In response to the audit findings, management has responded promptly to 
address the issues identified with all actions due to be completed by 28 
February 2017. Key improvements included:

 Enhancing existing guidance to give clearer expectations as to format 
and quality of information to be produced;

 Ensuring all responses are signed off by approved representatives from 
within the relevant Directorate to ensure consistency and quality is 
maintained;

 All responses will be checked by the Information Governance Unit 
before issue;

 Mandatory training will be applied to all SAR responders; and
 SARs will not be released to Services until identification of the requestor 

has been confirmed and the relevant fee received;

12.11 Completion of all the agreed actions should ensure a more robust control 
environment is established which should therefore mitigate the risk of any non-
compliance with the relevant regulatory framework. Internal Audit will perform a 
follow up audit in quarter 1 of 2017/18 to confirm all actions have been 
completed satisfactorily.

12.12 Alongside the above, it is noted that the Information Commissioners Office 
(ICO) undertook a Consensual Audit of the Councils’ Information Governance 
arrangements in December 2016. Such audits are intended to be supportive 
and the benefits include raising awareness of information governance and 
evidencing the Council’s commitment to improving practice. The Council 
agreed that the 3 areas to be covered by the audit were training and 
awareness, freedom of information requests and records management.       

Page 60



12.13 Based on the areas covered by the audit, the ICO concluded that there was a 
reasonable level of assurance that processes and procedures are in place and 
delivering data protection compliance. The audit identified some scope for 
improvement in existing arrangements to reduce the risk of non-compliance 
with the DPA and the Councils’ Information Governance Unit is now developing 
an action plan to ensure all issues highlighted are resolved in a timely manner. 
Internal Audit plan to follow up on this action plan in 2017/18 to ensure all 
actions are completed in an effective and timely manner.

12.14  In overall terms this outcome is considered to be very favourable by Council 
management, especially when benchmarked against the outcomes of many 
other such assessments, and the completion of both this action plan and the 
agreed actions referenced in paragraph 12.11 should ensure the Council is in a 
very strong position in relation to information governance as a whole going 
forward.

12.15 The current status of all other follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B 
and there are no specific issues which need to be drawn to the attention of 
Members.

13       Unplanned work

13.1    Savings Programme 
       (Various)

Internal Audit provided input into challenging the assumptions and calculations 
of certain initiatives forming part of the current Savings Programme. As part of 
this, Internal Audit liaised directly with relevant senior management to confirm 
the outcomes from the review prior to the proposals being submitted to 
Members for consideration and approval.

13.2 Controls over Duplicate Invoices
(Director of Resources)

As part of routine financial processes, software is used to identify any duplicate 
invoices to reduce the risk of any financial loss. Invoices are subject to data 
matches with other transactions on a daily basis, based on specified criteria. As 
reported in Quarter 2, audit work had identified that one of the duplicate 
invoices for a supplier had not been picked up by the system due to a 
technicality. This matter was subsequently resolved with the supplier. As a 
result of this, the criteria on which matches are processed have been reviewed 
to ensure their effectiveness is enhanced further. In addition, further testing of 
duplicate invoices has been undertaken by Internal Audit which concluded that 
the checks undertaken in the system are reasonable to identify potential 
duplicate payments.

 
14        Counter Fraud Team

14.1 A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from October 
2016 to December 2016 is set out below.

Page 61



Performance

14.2 A total of 200 fraud referrals were received in the third quarter of this financial 
year, representing a slight decrease of 16 from the same period in 2015/16. To 
date in 2016/17, we have received 683 fraud referrals. The main sources of 
these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the Partnership 
Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC employees. A significant 
number of these do not progress to formal investigation by the Team as they 
are either passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent malicious intent or the 
fact that there is not enough information to progress the matter.

14.3 From October to December 2016 the Team achieved £43,983 in additional 
savings and overpayments. This figure is lower than the first two quarters, 
taking into account; the Fraud Apprentice was successfully recruited into a 
permanent position on the Revenues and Benefits Team and, a number of 
cases reached fruition in the first half of the year. As a consequence, a number 
of cases are now at an early stage of investigation.  In total, this year, the team 
has achieved the recovery of £271,392. This figure derives from successful 
investigations into transactions associated with a number of Service areas 
including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult Care, 
as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties, administrative 
penalties and court costs. 

14.4 71% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in quarter three, bringing 
our total positive outcomes to 74%.

14.5 A further 3 sanctions were achieved in quarter three, bringing the total to 13. 
These now consist of 5 prosecutions, 5 formal cautions and 3 fines for fraud.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

14.6 The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received from 
the NFI.  

14.7 The Team tackled a sample of the NFI Council Tax Single Person Discount 
matches, which are aimed at identifying fraud and error in households where 
customers claim a 25% discount off their Council Tax bill. The matches were 
sifted and checked, and then proactive visits took place. The Team have now 
identified further savings of £5,000, increasing the total savings to £35,000.  

14.8 The Team have now received the 2016/2017 NFI Council Tax Support 
matches, along with the 2016/2017 NFI Council Tax matches.   The Team will 
now begin to tackle these matches.  

14.9 An additional £5,000 in overpayments has been raised from investigating the 
2014/2015 NFI Housing Benefit (HB) matches with Council Tax Support (CTS) 
in payment. This brings this year’s total to over £25,000.  In this regard, over 
£43,000 had already been raised throughout 2015/16. 

Page 62



Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

14.10 The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to over 
82 Data Protection Requests from October to December 2016, not including 
the work that is completed in the PET. 

14.11 Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, skills 
and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to prevent and 
detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-agency teams 
attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional Tasking 
Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community Cohesion & Equality; 
Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, 
RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service officials.

14.12 The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 120 ‘police checks’ on Rochdale 
BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and absconders.  In 
addition, a total of 8 fraud referrals have been received as a result of the PET. 

14.13 The experienced investigators have participated in days of action and proactive 
visits throughout the year, which has resulted in savings being generated in 
respect of Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Support.

15 Appointment of External Auditors

15.1 Further to the report discussed at Audit and Governance Committee on 6 
December 2016 regarding the requirement for local authorities to appoint their 
own external auditors prior to 31 December 2017 for the audit year 2018/19 
onwards, a report was taken to Council on 1 March 2017. At that meeting, 
Council gave approval for Rochdale Council to opt into the sector led 
arrangements through Public Sector Appointments Limited (PSAA).

15.2 This option allows for economies of scale to derive best value from the 
negotiated contract in the future. This option will also avoid the costs and 
administrative effort of the Council or even AGMA running their own 
procurement and management of contracts and will also avoid the requirement 
to set up an auditor panel with independent members.

15.3 Following approval of this decision, this was confirmed with PSAA by the 
deadline of 9 March 2017. Further timescales proposed by the PSAA going 
forward include the following:

 Invite tenders from audit firms – by April 2017;
 Award contracts – by 30 June 2017;
 Consult on and make final auditor appointments – by 31 December 

2017; and
 Consult on, propose fees and publish fees – by 31 March 2018.

Page 63



15.4 Further updates will be provided to Members as this procurement process 
progresses to confirm current status.

16  Internal Audit Performance Measures

16.1 The table below shows actual performance as at 31 December 2016 against 
Internal Audit targets for the third quarter, including the actuals for 2015/16. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Q3 

2015/16

Actual 
 Year 

2015/16

Target 
Q3

2016/17

Actual 
Q3

2016/17
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding overheads £234 £232 £269 £250
Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor (days) 191 194 184 189
3. Percentage of audit plan completed (95% for 
full year)

71% 96% 71% 75%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports issued within 
14 days of completion of the audit

100% 100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations accepted 100% 100% 98% 100%
6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the 
top two categories (i.e. very good & good)

98% 98% 98% 100%

  
16.2 All performance indicators are ahead of target for the third quarter and the Head 

of Internal Audit can confirm that the targeted out-turn for completion of the Audit 
Plan is still achievable for the full year. This position will continue to be closely 
monitored and should any concerns arise, these will be drawn to the attention of 
the Members. 

16.3 The cost per audit day shows a positive variance due to ongoing high levels of 
time being directed towards Internal Audit work and efforts to reduce 
administrative time. 

16.4 Similarly, chargeable days per auditor shows a positive variance against target 
due to efforts to minimise administrative time. 

17       Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit 
17.1 Internal Audit has completed audit work for a number of organisations in 

accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In the year to date this has included:

 Audits of 5 School Fund Accounts for 4 different schools under local authority 
control; and

 Grant certification for one Academy school.

Page 64



Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 65



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter three

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Stronger Families In April 2012, the Government launched the Troubled Families 
Programme (known locally as Stronger Families) to turn around the 
lives of troubled families over a 3 year period. This was extended for 
a further 5 years from 2015/16 to reach a further 400,000 families 
across England with a further £200 million being committed to the 
fund. The current Programme has been extended to families with a 
broader range of problems, including those affected by domestic 
violence and abuse, with younger children who need help and with a 
range of physical and mental health problems.
For each claim that is made by the Authority, there is a requirement 
for this to be independently verified by Internal Audit to confirm that it 
meets the claim criteria. The Authority must be able to demonstrate 
sustained and significant progress against the relevant criteria 
detailed in the Greater Manchester Troubled Families Phase 2 Family 
Outcomes Plan. To support this aim, a co-ordinated audit approach 
has been developed across Greater Manchester to ensure a 
consistent approach to verification is adopted.
The third claim in this Phase of £74,400 (cumulative claims of 
£288,000) was submitted in January 2017 and was verified by 
Internal Audit in accordance with the above methodology. Internal 
Audit testing did identify one duplicate claim which was removed 
before the claim was submitted.

Substantial None

P
age 66



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoo
ds

ICT Asset 
Management

The main focus of this audit was to review the ICT stock control 
arrangements managed by staff within ICT Services. The Mysite 
system is used to provide a central location to manage and store 
information relating to support, usage and the assets themselves.

The audit highlighted many areas of good practice and provided 
adequate assurance that controls and processes are effective. One 
high priority action was agreed to ensure that a full reconciliation was 
completed on an ongoing basis between orders placed and assets 
input to Mysite to ensure completeness and accuracy of data.

Other medium priority recommendations included ensuring:
 Stocktaking records are retained as evidence of checks 

completed;
 More information is recorded on the system such as purchase 

order numbers, dates and warranty expiry dates to ensure 
completeness of data held; and

 The number of categories showing the location of assets are 
reviewed and streamlined to ensure the information is more 
relevant and appropriate.

An action plan was in place to ensure timely completion of all the 
above recommendations which Internal Audit will follow up on once 
the final due date has passed.

Adequate H – 1 ,
M – 4,
L - 1

P
age 67



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s 
Services - 
Schools

Thematic Review 
of Payroll

The focus of this audit was to provide assurance on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of internal controls, processes and records in place 
to mitigate risks in the following areas:

 Additional payments to staff for extra duties above their 
contracted hours; and

 Leavers and contractual changes.
Audit work was undertaken in a number of schools to support the 
outcome.

The audit concluded that we can provide substantial assurance that 
controls in these areas are effective and no specific recommendations 
were made. However, as the audit focused on only a sample of 
schools, in order to assist all schools to satisfy themselves that they 
have appropriate arrangements in place, Internal Audit developed a 
checklist of actions for schools to consider and this was distributed to 
all schools in the Borough.

Substantial None

P
age 68



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s 
Services - 
Schools

2 Primary 
Schools

1 Special School

These comprised reviews of the schools exposure to risk using the 
Ofsted document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of 
other service areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of 
previous recommendations. 
All Souls CE Primary
Brownhill Special
St Johns CE Primary Thornham

One high priority recommendation was made to ensure that the 
Disclosure and Barring Service register was up to date for all staff and 
Governors. This has since been implemented. 

A number of other medium priority actions were agreed to improve 
processes and controls including ensuring that:
 The School Improvement Plan included relevant costings;
 Bank mandates and school inventories are brought up to date;
 The school Finance Policy is aligned with the Finance Procedure 

Manual;
 The Employment Status Indicator check is carried out on all self-

employed personnel;
 School Disposal Policies include delegated limits of approval;
 Safe insurance limits are adhered to;
 Tax and Treasury Policies are updated accordingly; and
 Valid VAT invoices are obtained to support all relevant 

transactions and are subject to VAT reclamation. 

Substantial 
– 2

Adequate - 
1

H – 1;
M – 12,
L – 11 

P
age 69



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 27 
FEBRUARY 2017   

Report Assurance Service 
High and 
Medium 
priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow 

Up Audit

Fostering Panel A Children's 25 31/07/2015 30/11/2016 20 5

The remaining 
recommendations 

are dependent 
upon new 

contracts being 
established 

together with a 
further review of 

policies which are 
due to be 

completed early 
in 2017.

Corporate CCTV 
Arrangements A Neighbourhoods 8 31/03/2016 11/01/2017 5 3

Awaiting 
response from 

management to 
confirm status of 

actions still in 
progress.

IT Disaster Recovery & 
Business Continuity A Neighbourhoods 2 31/07/2016    

Follow up to be 
completed as part 
of an audit to be 
done in 2017/18

Asset Management-  
Disposals A Economy 5 31/08/2016    Follow up in 

progress.

P
age 70



Controcc and other 
Payments A Adult 3 31/10/2016    

To be followed up 
Q4 2016/17

Connected Council 
Programme A Neighbourhoods 3 31/10/2016    

To be followed up 
in Q4 2016/17 
due to revised 
implementation 
date of 28/02/17

Secondary School L Children's 16 31/10/2016 09/11/2016 13 3

Further follow up 
to be completed 

in 2017/18

Report Assurance Service 
High and 
Medium 
priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow 

Up Audit

ICT Asset 
Management A Neighbourhoods 5 31/01/2017   3  2 Follow up in 

progress
Data Protection - 
Subject Access 
Requests

L Neighbourhoods 12 28/02/2017    To be followed up 
in Q1 2017/18

Contract Monitoring - 
Contact Centre A Neighbourhoods 3 31/03/2017    To be followed up 

2017/18

Better Care Fund A Adult 3 30/06/2017    To be followed up 
in 2017/18

P
age 71



Title: Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 Public/Private: For Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author: Ian Corbridge

Date: 13th March 2017

Director:    Director of Resources

Tel: Tel: 01706925452  

Author Email:    
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Comments from Statutory Officers: Monitoring Officer:  Yes
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

1.      Purpose of Report
1.1 This report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 which has 

been developed in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and with close 
liaison with both the Leadership Team and Senior Management to identify and 
evaluate the key areas of risk. This will provide appropriate coverage of Council 
services in order to ensure that an independent opinion can be given on the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes at the 
end of the year. The Audit Plan also provides for flexibility to allow for new and 
emerging areas of risk to be evaluated during the course of the year. This 
report therefore seeks to inform Audit and Governance Committee, in the 
context of the Members being charged with the overall responsibility for 
governance, of the proposed work programme of Internal Audit to facilitate 
approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18.

2.      Recommendation
2.1     The Audit and Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan for 

2017/18.

3.      Reason for recommendation
3.1 This report sets out the work programme for Internal Audit for 2017/18. Internal 

Audit is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as an 
independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish 
its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes. The focus of Internal Audit work includes the financial systems, 
operational and management controls and also includes risk management and 
corporate governance as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and 
effective use of resources.

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



4.      Background
           Audit Objectives

 4.1   The objectives of RBC Internal Audit which inform the development of the 
annual audit plan are to:
 Deliver an annual Internal Audit opinion and report that can be used by 

the Authority to inform its Annual Governance Statement;
 Independently review and appraise systems of control throughout the 

Council;
 Ascertain the extent of compliance with procedures, policies, regulations 

and legislation;
 Provide reassurance to management that their agreed policies are being 

carried out effectively;
 Facilitate good practice in managing risks;
 Provide proactive advice and input into any significant system or 

procedural developments;
 Recommend improvements in control, performance and productivity in 

achieving corporate objectives;
 Review and challenge the value for money processes and systems 

within the Council;
 Work in partnership with the external auditors;
 Identify fraud as a consequence of its reviews and deter crime; and
 Lead and promote the counter fraud culture within the Authority.

          Audit Planning

4.2     The Authority’s Internal Audit Strategic Plan details all potential audit areas at a 
corporate level and across all service areas within RBC. Attached to each audit 
area is a risk score based on a number of risk factors which influences the 
frequency of audit review and the estimated resource requirements to cover 
each audit area. Specific audit scopes are discussed and agreed with 
management prior to the commencement of each audit to optimize the value 
added from each audit. The Audit Strategic Plan is reviewed and challenged 
annually in consultation with Directors and senior management to ensure it 
remains up to date, especially in these times of significant ongoing change. 

4.3     The annual audit plan is determined from a number of sources:

 The Audit Strategic Plan identifying audit areas of highest risk, the date the 
audit review was last undertaken and frequency thereof;

 The corporate and service based risk registers, aligned with the corporate 
objectives, to identify areas of high strategic and operational risk;

 Discussions with members of the Leadership Team;
 Actions and developments identified in the Annual Governance Statement;
 Directors and Service Management Teams to advise on service 

developments and providing opinions on proposed audit coverage and 
audit scheduling;

 Issues highlighted by the Audit and Governance Committee;
 Changes and developments arising from corporate savings initiatives;

Page 73



 The external auditor, advising on national developments and to avoid 
duplication with their own audit plan for the Authority;

 Issues identified from external assessments undertaken on Council 
services;

 External assurances required by agreed contractual or funding 
arrangements or legislative requirements; and

 Audit resource availability.

 4.4  Provision exists within the audit plan for unplanned work such as special 
investigations involving suspected fraud and irregularity and the provision of ad 
hoc advice. For 2017/18 the provision for unplanned work amounts to12.6% of 
the available time.

4.5 A risk based approach to individual audit reviews is now well developed. This 
embraces operational and management controls and the wider business risk, 
as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. It allows an opinion to be expressed 
on risk identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage and control those risks. 

Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

4.6      The annual Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 has been agreed with the Director of 
Resources. Agreement to individual Service Audit Plans has also been 
received from all relevant Directors through attendance at Senior Management 
Team Meetings, which form a core part of the ongoing client liaison process. A 
detailed breakdown of the Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 is included in      
Appendix A. 

4.7 Audit coverage is prioritised and categorised between “core” work and 
“assurance” work. Core work relates to those areas, normally of higher risk, 
where Internal Audit review or support will add greatest value to the 
organisation. The projects within this category will be given the highest priority 
in the event of competing demands for Internal Audit involvement. Assurance 
work complements the work from the core plan and ensures an adequate level 
of Internal Audit review each year within each Service. Both core and 
assurance work form key elements of the Audit Plan to allow a formal audit 
opinion to be formed at the end of each year.

4.8 The assessment of risk for each audit within the Plan takes account of many 
factors including materiality, the risk of reputational damage, potential fraud 
risk, third party sensitivity, the extent to which the service area is governed by 
legislation or external regulation, results of previous audits or external 
inspections, the extent of recent change within processes and systems and the 
degree of manual intervention within processes. Priority within the plan will 
always be given to those audit areas assessed as either high or medium risk in 
this context.
 

4.9 The risk profile of the Authority is still dominated by the impact of the Savings 
Programme and the fundamental restructuring of Council services that is 
continuing to take place as a result of the significant reductions to funding 
streams being directed by central government. Accordingly this continues to 

Page 74



influence many areas of Internal Audit work over the coming year. As part of 
this, specific focus will be directed towards the various transformation 
programmes that are progressing as well as the governance and 
commissioning challenges that arise from developing and adopting new ways 
of working and different models of delivering services. The move towards 
greater integration of health and social care provision forms a key part of these 
new developments, including the potential development of a local care 
organisation and integrated commissioning, as does the devolution agenda 
within the Greater Manchester region.

4.10   In view of the significant changes taking place within Services across the 
Council, this factor provided a starting point for the 2017/18 planning process 
more than the Audit Strategic Plan. The latter continues to be challenged and 
reviewed by Internal Audit, in conjunction with Service management, to ensure 
that it remains in line within the shape and structure of Council Services, 
functions and systems and continues to support the overall Internal Audit 
approach going forward.  

4.11 Alongside the above, the core themes of the Audit Plan align with the significant 
risks currently faced by the Authority which include:
Compliance with the Public Services Network which is crucial to ensure 

ongoing connectivity with key government systems;
Other key ICT system developments which support transformational change 

within services, including the Connected Council Programme;
The effectiveness of information governance within which ongoing 

challenges exist for the Council to remain compliant with various legislation 
and regulations, also with reference to the audit completed by the 
Information Commissioners Office in December 2016; 
The impact of ongoing legislative changes  and the personalisation agenda 

within Adult Care which is transforming the ways in which care is provided 
and funded, requiring a commensurate change in the systems and 
processes which support the services;
The Council’s response and developments in processes and controls within 

Children’s Services in the light of issues previously highlighted by external 
bodies in relation to child sexual exploitation and safeguarding;
The governance of and contractual relationships with significant external 

partners on which increasing reliance may be placed to deliver significant 
services either for or alongside Council services; 
The commissioning and performance management of external service 

providers;
Significant contracts and capital projects, such as Rochdale Riverside and 

the ongoing Highways Management contracts, and compliance with 
procurement legislation and regulations, supported by the STAR shared 
procurement service; 
The welfare reform programme which will continue to impact on systems and 

processes in 2017/18 in order to ensure compliance with new legislation 
associated with benefits available to residents of the Borough;
Fundamental financial systems which support all significant transaction 

streams across the Authority, including council tax, business rates, housing 
benefit, the local council tax support scheme, Controcc (adult care and 

Page 75



residential payments system), payroll, treasury management, general ledger, 
debtors, creditors and cash control;
The robustness of decision making and approval processes, together with 

the adequacy of segregation of duties, specifically at a  time when resources 
within the Council are reducing;
The further development of a cohesive approach to managing the risk of 

fraud, which is enhanced at a time when the public sector is facing such 
significant economic challenges; and
Ongoing changes within overall governance structures in order to promote 

improvements in the overall control environment.

4.12   Internal Audit will continue to take a lead role, working in conjunction with the 
Monitoring Officer, in promoting and supporting the zero-tolerance approach to 
fraud adopted within the Authority. This will include:

 Supporting the promotion of and awareness of the Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy (AFACP), including the Whistleblowing Policy;

 Further development of a pro-active approach to fraud detection which 
both aligns with and adds to the National Fraud Initiative;

 Supporting the above approach by further developing the use of data 
mining software to highlight further potential areas of risk;

 Monitoring and reporting on the Authority’s response to various 
professional and sector led guidance and publications on best practice 
in fraud prevention and detection such as Protecting the Public Purse;  

 Directly supporting the Counter Fraud Team to investigate and 
prosecute any identified fraudulent activity and to ensure an effective 
exchange of relevant information with various enforcement agencies; 
and

 Ensuring compliance is being achieved with all key policies and there is 
adequate awareness across the Authority. 

4.13 In addition to the above, Internal Audit will continue with the responsibility for 
co-ordinating the National Fraud Initiative. This will assist in providing input into 
future Internal Audit planning processes in relation to any specific issues that 
are highlighted through this exercise.

 
 

Page 76



           Summary of Audit Coverage by Service 2017/18

4.14  Planned and unplanned audit coverage by Service is summarised below.

4.15         The focus of individual services continues to evolve and realign as structural 
changes across the Council become embedded. With ever reducing 
finances and resources, the challenges faced within these services 
continue to be very demanding to ensure that they meet the needs of 
customers as well as relevant statutory obligations. As such the level of 
assurance required to confirm that controls and processes are effective has 
increased to ensure that risks are appropriately managed and overall 
objectives are achieved.

4.16 The summary also reflects the contingency of unplanned time which allows 
Internal Audit to respond to new and emerging risks which may not be 
currently anticipated. As such, and in view of ongoing changes within 
Council services and activities, the Audit Plan will be constantly reviewed 
during the course of the year to ensure focus is being directed towards the 
areas of highest risk.

Page 77



           Other Sources of Assurance
4.17 The development of the plan has taken account of other sources of 

assurances, both internal and external to Council activities which sit alongside 
the assurances provided by Internal Audit. This includes not only the process of 
challenge and decision making through the Cabinet and Committee structure, 
forming a core part of the Constitution, but also various forms of self-
assessment such as the annual Director’s Governance Assurance Statement 
and the Quality Assurance Frameworks within Children’s Social Care and Adult 
Care. 

 4.18  In addition, there are a number of areas of ongoing self-review with reporting 
through to senior managers’ groups and to Members as appropriate, including 
the following:

 Budget monitoring (revenue and capital);

 Compliance with risk management strategy;

 Review and management of major projects;

 Performance management and service delivery;

 Absence management;

 Health and safety; and

 Equality and diversity.
4.19 RBC Internal Audit work closely with Stockport BC Internal Audit and Trafford 

BC Internal Audit to audit procurement areas within the scope covered by the 
STAR Procurement hub. Any such shared audits therefore provide assurance 
for all 3 authorities and any audit reports issued are shared with each Authority 
and reported through to their respective Audit Committees. Aside from the 2 
audits included within the Audit Plan in Appendix A (audits 54 and 55), 3 further 
audits are planned during 2017/18 to cover the following:

 Financial appraisal of tenderers (Trafford);

 Compliance with Contract Procedure Rules (Stockport); and

 Social value from a contract management perspective (Trafford).
4.20 Further assurance is gained from other independent reviews undertaken by 

both external audit (Grant Thornton) and other external bodies such as Ofsted, 
Care Quality Commission, HM Customs, Food Standards Agency, Information 
Commissioners Office etc. together with independent peer reviews undertaken 
within Children’s Services and Adult Care to evaluate processes and practices 
against best practice standards. Internal Audit is also now liaising with the 
Mersey Internal Audit Agency who provide internal audit services to the Clinical 
Commissioning Group in order to ensure that appropriate levels of assurance 
are gained as the integration of health and social care services progresses.

Page 78



 Internal Audit Performance Indicators
4.21  The following performance indicators have been set in order to provide a 

measure of the performance of the Internal Audit team during each year.

Performance Indicator Target Estimate Target
2016/17 2016/17 2017/18

Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day (£) – excluding 
overheads

269 260 259

Efficiency
2. Productive days per auditor 184 186 186

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 96 96 96

4. Percentage of draft reports issued 
within 14 days of completion of the audit

98 100 98

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

98 100 98

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks 
in the top two categories (i.e. very good 
and good)

97 98 98

4.22 The basis for the targets that have been established is as follows:
1. Cost per Audit Day (£)
This indicator provides a measure of the cost of the Internal Audit function by 
evaluating the total controllable cost of the function (i.e. excluding overhead 
cost allocations) in relation to productive days spent directly on audit work. Cost 
per audit day is likely to be ahead of target in 2016/17 due to ongoing efforts to 
minimize administrative and other non-productive time and direct as much 
resource towards meeting the demands being placed upon the Internal Audit 
team. The target for 2017/18 is slightly more challenging than set for 2016/17 
due to the plan to further increase productive days per auditor as noted below 
which more than compensates for the impact of increases in salary related 
costs.    
2. Productive days per auditor
This indicator measures the efficiency of the Internal Audit function by 
calculating the average number of days spent by each member of the team on 
audit work, thus excluding non-chargeable time. Productive days per auditor 
will be slightly ahead of target in 2016/17 with significant efforts being directed 
towards minimizing administrative time, as noted above. The target for 2017/18 
is slightly higher than the target for 2016/17 due to the reduction in non-
productive days more than compensating for an increase in bank holiday days 

Page 79



in the financial year compared with those in 2016/17, due to the timing of those 
holidays.     
3. Percentage of audit plan completed 
This measure provides assurance that an appropriate proportion of the Audit 
Plan has been completed to enable an opinion to be delivered on the overall 
control environment. The percentage of audit plan completed in 2016/17 is 
likely to achieve the target for the year.  

4. Percentage of draft reports issued within 14 days of completion of the audit
This indicator measures the efficiency of audit processes to ensure that draft 
reports are produced in a timely manner after the conclusion of the audit 
fieldwork. The target for 2016/17 will be exceeded and the target for 2017/18 
has been made at the same challenging level as 2016/17. 
5. Percentage of audit recommendations accepted
This indicator provides a measure of the acceptance of client management of 
the findings and recommendations arising from audit work completed. This 
target continues to be achieved.
6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the top two categories (i.e. very 

good and good) 
This indicator provides a measure of how client management evaluates the 
service provided by audit staff through the client survey document that 
management are requested to complete at the conclusion of each audit. The 
target continues to be achieved as Internal Audit continues to improve 
effectiveness in this area through a focus on enhancing overall service levels 
and customer liaison.

4.23  The structure of the Internal Audit Team is set out in Appendix B and remains 
unchanged from 2016/17. 

5.      Alternatives considered
5.1 No alternatives have been considered given the statutory responsibilities that 

are being fulfilled through this process.

6.      Financial Implications
6.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

7.      Legal Implications
7.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report other than those noted in 

section 10.

8 Personnel Implications
8.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

9 Corporate Priorities
9.1 This report supports the overall corporate objective of ensuring that governance 

arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly throughout this 
period of significant change.

Page 80



10.      Risk Assessment Implications 

10.1 The Internal Audit function discharges the statutory responsibilities delegated to 
the Director of Resources through Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972 and the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to undertake an 
effective internal audit in accordance with public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance. The Internal Audit Plan forms the basis on which an 
independent opinion on the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes can be provided at each year end for inclusion within 
the Annual Governance Statement. The main risk of not accepting the plan is 
that this opinion cannot be delivered to confirm and support the adequacy of 
the overall governance framework.

11. Equalities Impacts

11.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2     Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None

Page 81



Appendix A                                             Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  
 ADULT CARE         

1
Local Care Organisation (LCO)
Provide support and challenge to the development of 
the governance arrangements for the ICO prior to sign 
off by the Integrated Commissioning Board.

Poor governance leading to 
failure to objective key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk H   12  Assurance

2

Disabled Facilities Grant/ Minor Adaptations
Provide assurance on the effectiveness of the delivery 
of disabled facilities grants and minor adaptations, 
ensuring that there are adequate systems in place for 
undertaking assessments and processing applications 
in a timely manner, whilst also ensuring they represent 
value for money and accord with relevant statutory 
requirements.

Client needs are not met or 
statutory requirements are 
not complied with leading to 
increase in financial cost.

Risk/ 
Compliance M  15   Assurance

Controcc      

3 Ensure financial controls and reconciliation procedures 
are appropriate to support payments to providers.

Payments are inappropriate 
or not correctly accounted 
for.

Risk 
(material 
system)

M    15 Core

Pen Picture (Service User Guide)         

4
Evaluate the arrangements in place governing the 
compilation of pen pictures which provide an indication 
of a service users level of need, ensuring a consistent 
approach across teams.

Ineffective use of resources 
leading to increases in costs Risk M   15  Assurance

P
age 82



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 Sensory Team (Visual/ Hearing Impairment)         

5
Provide assurance over the arrangements in place for 
undertaking assessments and addressing service user 
needs, ensuring that the team are fit for purpose and 
comply with statutory requirements.

Client needs are not met or 
statutory requirements are 
not complied with leading to 
increase in financial cost.

Risk M    12 Assurance

Quality Assurance         

6 Evaluate coverage of quality assurance process and 
role of QA Panel to ensure consistent application of 
practice standards

Inconsistent application of 
standards may lead to 
enhanced vulnerability of 
adults in care

Risk M   15  Assurance

Cash budgets         

7
Review processes to monitor cash budgets for service 
users in charge of their own carer package to ensure 
used appropriately.

Inappropriate use of 
resources or fraud resulting 
in clients needs not being 
met

Risk M 12    Assurance

 Payment/ prepayment cards         

8
Evaluate processes and controls relating to 
procurement cards and prepayment cards within Adult 
Care Services established to support clients needs. 

Ineffective management of 
care accounts and 
inaccurate data which may 
lead to financial loss or 
reputational damage.

Risk M  12   Assurance

P
age 83



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 CHILDREN'S SERVICES - CHILDREN’S SOCIAL 
CARE         

Unaccompanied children         

9
Evaluate processes supporting asylum seekers and 
international travellers with no recourse to public funds 
to ensure funding is optimised and spend is monitored. 
Include Safeguarding Unit and Equalities Team.

Financial and reputational 
risks may result if cases not 
handled appropriately

Risk M 15    Assurance

Shared services         

10
Input to and evaluate governance and processes 
supporting the development of shared service 
arrangements including those relating to Complex 
Safeguarding, Emergency Duty Team and Edge of 
Care.

Statutory responsibilities 
may not be met if effective 
arrangements not 
developed

Risk H    15 Assurance

Multi agency screening service        

11 Evaluate processes to ensure guidance is followed, 
timely decision making robust documentation of 
decisions made.

Interventions are not timely, 
appropriate or proportionate 
increasing vulnerability of 
children and pressures on 
service provision

Risk M   15  Assurance

Residential homes        

12 Evaluate financial and operational controls within 
internal residential care, focusing on areas not covered 
by external inspection.

Ineffective use of funds 
leading to financial and 
reputational risk

Risk M  15   Assurance

P
age 84



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

13
Integrated Children's System (ICS) (IT audit)
Evaluate the management of risks associated with the 
use of the ICS system specifically in relation to 
confidentiality, integrity and availability of the system.

Inadequate controls leading 
to data breaches, non-
compliance with legislation 
and poor decision making.

 H    12 Assurance

 CHILDREN’S SERVICES - EARLY HELP, 
PREVENTION AND PARTNERSHIPS         

Stronger Families Financial Claim         

14

Independent verification of the self-declaration process 
to support the funding application process in Phase 2, 
focusing specifically on the quality and sustainability of 
outcomes which support the payments by results.

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance M  12  12 Core

Primary schools (13)         

15 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L 20 18 26 13 Assurance

 Special schools (1)         

16 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L 6    Assurance

P
age 85



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

Secondary schools (3)       

17 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L  11 7  Assurance

 Nursery schools (1)         

18 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L    6 Assurance

 Pupil Premiums (SEND)         

19

Evaluate the effectiveness of governance processes 
relating to the use of pupil premiums for special 
educational needs and disability children and the 
outcomes achieved.

Inappropriate use of funds 
and outcomes not achieved Risk M 15    Assurance

 Funding for SEN children         

20
Evaluate the governance over the use of funding for 
special educational needs support children focusing on 
those schools with the biggest gaps in progress/ 
attainment.

Inappropriate use of funds 
and outcomes not achieved Risk M  15   Assurance

 Rochdale Additional Needs Service         

21 Evaluation of efficiency and effectiveness of current 
working practices.

Ineffective management 
and control leads to 
financial pressures.

Risk L   12  Assurance

22 General advice and liaison with Schools Service
Ad hoc control issues or 
developments are not 
supported in a timely 
manner.

All L 3 3 3 3 Assurance

P
age 86



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING         

23

Integrated commissioning
Evaluate processes and controls supporting integrated 
commissioning arrangements including the role of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board and the delivery of the 
Locality Plan (link with Adult Care).

Poor governance leading to 
failure to objective key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk H    15 Core

24
Link4Life Client Management
Evaluate the effectiveness of governance arrangements 
supporting the monitoring of the contractual relationship 
and the new performance framework.

Lack of appropriate 
accountability leading to 
failure to achieve corporate 
objectives.

Risk/ 
Compliance M 12    Core

25

Sexual health contract management
Evaluate the joint commissioning arrangements with 
Bury and Oldham to ensure the operations are in line 
with the contract and are effective, and out of area 
billings and payments are appropriately processed and 
recovered.

Inappropriate rates or 
charging processes leading 
to financial loss

Risk M 15    Assurance

Public Protection - Licensing/ Health & Safety         

26
Evaluate the effectiveness of assessment processes to 
ensure legal and regulatory risks are being 
appropriately managed and income generation is 
optimised for the Authority.

Financial and reputational 
loss, together with fines 
through non-compliance 
with legislation or regulatory 
regimes.

Risk/ 
Compliance M  15  15 Assurance

P
age 87



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 NEIGHBOURHOODS         
Highways Contract Management         

27 Provide assurance regarding the governance over and 
management of the Highways Contract (Balfour Beatty) 
focusing on areas such as winter maintenance.

Corporate objectives are not 
achieved to ensure roads 
are in good condition and 
value for money achieved.

Risk M   15  Assurance

 Highways Network Valuation         

28
Follow up on 2016/17 audit and evaluate the 
effectiveness of the process to determine the base data 
for the street lighting network to feed into the overall 
valuation of the highways network assets.

Base data lacks integrity 
leading to inaccurate 
valuation in the accounts.

Risk H  5   Core

Tranman IT system         

29
Evaluate the effectiveness of the Tranman system, 
including the robustness of interfaces with other 
systems such as Civica, data integrity, processing of 
charges, recovery of income and security, following the 
implementation of system developments. 

Ineffective financial 
management due to poor 
quality data.

Risk M   12  Assurance

Environmental Management       

30
Overall review of processes and controls supporting 
financial and operational management of key service 
areas following Service restructure, including follow up 
on actions from previous audits. 

Control weaknesses or poor 
overall governance may 
lead to additional financial 
pressures, lack of 
compliance or increased 
risk of fraud or error.

Risk/ 
Compliance M   15  Assurance

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 88



Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Highway 
Maintenance) Specific Grant Determination 2010 No 
31/2530

      

31
Certification to confirm that expenditure relates to 
capital items (deadline 31 August)

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L

 

5  

 

Core

32

Local Highways Maintenance Capital Funding
Evaluate the evidence supporting the annual self-
assessment questionnaire which supports the claim for 
funding for the period 2015/16-2020/21 (deadline 31 
January)

Risk of funding being 
reduced on a percentage 
scale over the 6 year 
duration of the funding.

Risk/ 
Compliance L   5  Core

33
Local Growth Fund Determination (2015-16): 
31/2546
Certify conditions in grant award letter have been 
complied with (deadline early July).

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L 5    Core

34
Enforcement
Ensure effective controls are in place over the 
application and recovery of Fixed Penalty Notices for all 
types of offences.

Control weaknesses leading 
to loss of income Assurance L   10  Assurance

35
Town Hall Income
Evaluate processes and controls supporting the 
charging of income generated from use of the Town Hall

Loss of income or 
impairment of cash flow Assurance L   5  Assurance

36
Cemeteries and Bereavement
Ensure effective controls maintained over charging and 
recovery of fees.

Control weaknesses leading 
to loss of income Assurance M    12 Assurance

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 89



 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION 
TECHNOLOGY         

 Public Services Network         

37
Evaluate processes and controls in place to support the 
submission of the Annual Code of Connection in July, 
thereby ensuring connectivity with key government 
systems.

Compliance with key areas 
of legislation and regulation 
are compromised which 
may result in loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H 5    Core

Connected Council Programme       

38
Ensure appropriate arrangements are in place to 
manage and control the progress of the CCP to ensure 
it is on track to deliver the expected benefits and 
support the changing needs of the Council's service 
provision. 

Failure to deliver the 
expected benefits of this 
project could lead to costs 
not being reduced in line 
with expectations and 
services not being able to 
deliver a more holistic 
service provision to 
customers.

Risk M    10 Assurance

39
IT Disaster Recovery
Evaluate IT disaster recovery arrangements to ensure 
they are robust and effective.

Loss of data and services in 
the event of a serious 
incident occurring.

Risk H 12    Assurance

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 90



40

IT Access Controls
Ensure that access to data in Council systems is 
appropriately authorised to only those that have a 
genuine business need and that the level of access is 
commensurate with need.

In appropriate access could 
lead to data breaches, fraud 
or other inappropriate use of 
data.

Risk H    12 Assurance

41
RBC Website 
Review the security, resilience and overall effectiveness 
of the Council's website since the change of the Content 
Management System to SharePoint.

Reduced service to 
customers to lack of 
availability, incomplete or 
inaccurate information.

Risk M   10  Assurance

42
ICT Strategy
Evaluate compliance with the ICT Strategy which was 
implemented with effect from July 2016

Lack of confidentiality, 
integrity or availability of 
information or systems with 
increased risk of fraud or 
data breaches.

Risk/ 
Compliance M    12 Assurance

43
Compliance with IT Policies
Evaluate the effectiveness of new processes relating to 
starters, leavers and changes to confirm IT systems are 
updated promptly and securely. 

Risk that PSN compliance 
or information governance 
requirements will be 
compromised

Risk/ 
Compliance M    15 Core

Information governance        

44
Annual audit assurance to confirm compliance with data 
protection and data security legislation and relevant 
policies and guidelines, focusing on a follow up to the 
actions agreed from the Information Commissioners 
Office audit in 2016/17. 

Compliance with key areas 
of legislation and regulation 
are compromised which 
may result in financial 
penalties or loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H 7 8   Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 ECONOMY         

P
age 91



45

Economic Development Fund/ Business Growth 
Grants
Evaluate the governance over and management of 
grant assistance provided to local companies to ensure 
appropriateness and transparency of decision making.

Ineffective use of funds and 
reputation damage Risk M  12   Assurance

 Rochdale Riverside (Town Centre East)         

46
Provide assurance that effective governance and 
controls over procurement have been established within 
the programme of spend together with adequate funding 
and viability.

Failure to meet corporate 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk M  15   Core

47
Asset Management - Statutory Compliance
Evaluate management of statutory compliance with the 
Council's property portfolio.

Failure to comply with 
statute or contractual 
obligations leading to 
additional financial 
pressures

Compliance M 12    Assurance

 RESOURCES         

Annual payroll returns      

48 Assurance provided to s151 officer to confirm accuracy 
and integrity of annual payroll returns and P11Ds 
(deadline May).

Inaccurate returns are 
submitted. Compliance M 15    Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 Pension Scheme Certification         

P
age 92



49
Ensure the pension data for 2016/17 is accurate and in 
accordance with the Scheme Regulations (deadline 
early May)

Inaccurate returns are 
submitted resulting in 
benefits, the Annual 
Benefits Statement and the 
actuarial valuation

Compliance M 10    Core

 Housing benefit         

50 Review processes and controls supporting housing 
benefit claims. 

Benefits and taxes are not 
applied in line with 
regulations and potential for 
financial loss.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M   15  Core

 Council tax billing        

51
Review processes and controls supporting council tax 
billing to ensure that the changes to discounts and 
exemptions have been correctly applied.

Council tax bills are 
inaccurate leading to 
financial loss. Non- 
compliance with regulations 
and local scheme.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M  12   Core

 Business rates         

52

Review procedures and controls supporting the billing, 
collection and recovery of business rates to ensure 
income is maximised, new discretionary reliefs are 
correctly applied, write-offs are appropriately authorised 
and arrears are managed effectively. 

Income is not maximised 
leading to financial 
pressures. Non-compliance 
with regulation.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M   15  Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 93



53
Assessed and Supported Year in Employment Grant 
(Child Care)
Confirm the grant of £45k was used exclusively for the 
purposes set out in the agreement (deadline 30 June)

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L 5    Core

Procurement - CHEST         

54 Evaluate the use of CHEST to ensure it is consistent 
and appropriate across the STAR hub.

Ineffective use of systems 
resulting in lack of audit 
trails

Risk L 15    Core

 Procurement - Contracts Register         

55
Evaluate the completeness and accuracy of the STAR 
Contract Register, also ensuring it is used effectively to 
support procurement initiatives and management. 

Contract management is not 
effective leading to 
impairment in value for 
money or potential risk of 
non-compliance.

Risk M   15  Core

 Purchase cards         

56
Evaluate controls over and usage of purchase cards to 
ensure compliance with guidance, including introduction 
of  lodged purchase cards within school/ town hall 
kitchens. 

In appropriate use of cards 
leading to fraud or financial 
loss

Risk/ 
Compliance L    10 Core

Coordination and support for key policies       

57 Champion roles relating to business continuity, health 
and safety and equality.

Non-compliance with key 
policies Compliance N/A 3 3 3 3 Assurance

Cash control         

58 Ensure key controls over cash income and expenditure 
within key service areas are effective.

Loss or misappropriation of 
income. Risk L    12 Assurance

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 94



 Operating expenditure/ Creditors         

59

Evaluate the effectiveness of controls over the 
processing and recording of operating expenses. As 
part of this, follow up on anomalies identified by the 
fraud module within AP Forensics data interrogation 
software to confirm the integrity of relevant transactions 
and duplicate payments arising from invoices and 
payment requests for the same services.

Inappropriate expenditure 
leading to fraud and 
financial loss

Risk 
(material 
system)

M  12  12 Core

 Payroll         

60
Review processes and controls over payroll 
transactions focusing on compliance with new 
legislation relating to workers engaged through personal 
services companies.

Tax and national insurance 
are not appropriately 
accounted for.

Risk 
(material 
system)

M 15    Core

 GOVERNANCE         
Governance structure         

61
Provide assurance on the effectiveness of the 
governance structure and input and challenge on 
relevant initiatives, including attendance and support for 
Governance Board.

Ineffective decision making 
leading to strategic 
objectives not being met.

Risk M 8 8 8 8 Core

Annual Governance Statement      

62 Evaluation of the Annual Governance Statement to 
ensure it aligns with knowledge and understanding of 
structures and processes in place.

Assurance for Members Risk H  10   Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 95



Committee reporting         

63 Attendance, reporting, training and support for Audit and 
Governance Committee and responding to issues 
raised by Members

Members do not get 
adequate information and 
support to ensure effective 
governance.

Risk H 6 6 6 6 Core

 Devolution         

64

Liaison with other AGMA Authorities to provide any 
relevant assurance on developments arising from the 
implementation of the devolution agenda.

No assurance is provided 
on developments driven by 
AGMA or the Combined 
Authority

Risk M 2 2 2 2 Core

 Ethical Governance         

65

Evaluate the effectiveness of the processes supporting 
compliance with ethical governance principles including 
the management of officers with external commercial 
interests. 

Inadequate processes may 
result in challenges to 
processes and decisions 
and reputational damage

Risk/ 
Compliance L   12  Assurance/ 

Compliance

 Risk Management         

66
Support, challenge and evaluate the embedding of risk 
management both corporately and within all Service 
areas.

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
appropriate controls not 
being identified or 
implemented

Risk M 5 5 5 5 Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 96



 FRAUD         
Managing the risk of fraud         

67

Undertake pro-active audit testing to identify any areas 
of potential fraud and ensure the Council’s overall 
approach to fraud supports the zero-tolerance culture 
through policy development and corporate fraud 
responses. Also support provided to the Counter Fraud 
Team.

Appropriate resource is not 
directed towards minimising 
the risk of fraud occurring.

Risk M 6 6 6 6 Core

National Fraud Initiative         
68 Manage and co-ordinate the NFI including additional 

checks on data matches where appropriate.
Statutory requirements are 
not complied with. Compliance M 4 4 4 3 Core

 OTHER         
  69 Audit planning and liaison    3 3 3 10  

70 Completion of audits from 2016/17 – planned and 
unplanned    50     

 External traded services         

71
Perform audits of School Fund Accounts and grant 
certifications to generate external income for the 
Service.

    5 5   

72
Savings Programme
Provide input and advice to support various savings 
initiatives

     7   

73
PSIAS Peer Reviews
Perform and support Peer Reviews of other North West 
Internal Audit functions to assess conformance to 
current auditing standards

    4 4   

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 97



  
74 Follow up of audit recommendations to ensure 

completed    10 10 10 10  
   TOTAL FOR PLANNED AUDIT WORK    296 251 297 266  

 CONTINGENCY FOR UNPLANNED WORK         

75
Audit resource set aside to respond to new and 
emerging risks and issues identified during the year 
plus management requests and ad hoc work

   20 20 20 20  

76
Audit resource set aside to respond to suspected 
fraud issues, whistleblowing referrals or other 
investigations that may be requested.

   20 20 20 20  

 TOTAL    336 291 337 306  

Appendix B                                Internal Audit Team Structure at as 1 April 2017

P
age 98



    

Head of Internal 
Audit 

 Audit Manager  Audit Manager

Auditor
(Term time 

only)

Senior 
Auditor

Senior 
Auditor 

Auditor

P
age 99



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

Subject: Risk Management Progress 
Report - Q3 2016/17

Status:  Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Date: Monday, 13 March 2017
 

Report of: Director of Resources

Author Email:    
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Martin Nixon

Tel: Tel: 01706925415

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 This report summarises Risk Management activities during Quarter 3 2016/17.

2 Recommendations

2.1      Report for information.

3 Reasons for recommendations

3.1 This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Risk Management activities. The work of RBC Risk Management is 
an ongoing requirement from the Accounts and Audit Regulations to produce 
an Annual Governance Statement (AGS), with Risk Management processes 
being an integral part of the AGS. 

Alternatives considered

3.2       Not applicable.

4 Financial Implications

4.1       There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5  Legal Implications

5.1      There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Page 100

Agenda Item 10



6 Personnel Implications

6.1       There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

7 Corporate Priorities

7.1       This report supports the Council’s overall corporate objectives of ensuring that 
governance arrangements remain strong across the Council, particularly 
throughout this period of significant change.

8. Risk Assessment Implications 

8.1 All of the issues described within points 10–12 below include Risk implications. 

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2       Equality/Community Impact Assessments

            There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

10 Corporate Risk Register
10.1 The RBC Leadership team continue to proactively review and manage the risks 

identified under the Corporate Risk Register. The risks held under the 
Corporate register are those viewed as potential threats to the delivery of the 
overarching objectives for the whole Council (identified in the Corporate Plan).

No changes have been made to the Leadership risks recorded during Quarter 
3. However further reviews of existing risks have been carried out resulting in 
the realignment of some controls to the appropriate owners, and the re-
evaluation of the impact of certain controls.

11 Service Risk Management

11.1 Risk Register Structure Guidance
Following reviews of all Service risk registers in 2016, it was considered 
appropriate to re-evaluate the nature and volume of risks and controls included 
within the process. This has therefore formed a key part of the current review 
and update of the Risk Management Policy with a view to promoting greater 
efficiency and enhanced value in terms of its contribution to the decision-
making process and the delivery of objectives across all areas of the Council

Updated guidance to support the risk management process will be one of the 
main outputs from this exercise. It should also reduce the overall number of 
risks and controls within the registers, and therefore the workload involved, 
whilst also ensuring all areas of risk are still covered.

Page 101



A briefing paper has been submitted to the Wider Leadership Team, for 
consideration, at a meeting on 14th March 2017.

11.2 Integrated Care Risk Management
The risk management activity associated with the Better Care Fund (BCF) and 
the Locality Plan programmes is to be managed via new risk registers currently 
in development. Both programmes are aimed at addressing health and service 
integration and transformation in part through pooling of budgets for health and 
social care services. The Risk Manager is already supporting the Locality Plan 
Development Group in this process.

Ultimately, risks identified will be owned jointly by Health and Local Authority, 
therefore the intention is to agree governance and monitoring procedures which 
adequately address the key risks to the operation of all projects.

11.3 Flood Protection
A group of combined RBC Services (Strategic Planning, Highways, Property – 
Technical, and Risk Management) has carried out an assessment of the flood 
risk to the Number One Riverside building.

Factors such as the likelihood of future flood incidents (involving referral to the 
Environment Agency), and the possible financial or service interruption impact 
have been considered alongside the cost-effectiveness of demountable flood 
barriers. A report has been submitted to the Director of Neighbourhoods to set 
out these factors and determine the way forward.

11.4 Schools Risk Ranking
RBC liability insurers, Zurich Insurance UK, are to carry out a School Risk 
Ranking exercise during the next quarter as part of the Risk Management 
service provided within their insurance contract. The exercise will involve visits 
by Zurich Risk Consultants to 12 Primary and 4 Secondary schools with reports 
to be provided to confirm the quality of risk management across the sample.

Agreement was reached in February 2017 with Children’s Services on which 
specific schools are to be inspected. The information provided by the 
assessments will provide benefits to Children’s Services, the Risk Management 
and Safety teams, and the management teams, including governors, at the 
individual schools themselves.

11.5 Insurance Tender Process
The current long-term agreement in place for the whole of the RBC insurance 
programme expires at renewal date in June 2017. A tender process is already 
underway which provides the opportunity for competing insurers to quote for 
our business. Risk Management has already contributed a large amount of 
positive risk information to include as part of the Insurer Presentation 
document. Progress in some of the risk mitigation areas mentioned earlier in 
this report will put the Authority in a stronger negotiation position during the 
tender.

Page 102



The Risk Manager will be participating in an Insurer Engagement Day on 17th 
March 2017 to discuss our risk control procedures with interested insurers in 
more detail.

12 Risk Management Results.

12.1 The table below shows the Risk Management results reported to the 
Leadership dashboard for Quarter 3 2016/17. 

Leadership Dashboard –
Risk Management

Result 
 Q2 

2016/17

Result 
 Q3 

2016/17

Target
2016/17

1. Number of Corporate Register Risks 10 10 Statement 
only

2. Number of Red risks on Corporate Register 0 0 0
3. Number of Red risks on Service Registers 0 0 0
4. Number of Risks where risk score has 
increased in last Quarter

0 0 0

There are no Red category risks to report at this time.

13 Priorities for the Next Quarter

1) The Risk Manager to participate in the Insurer Engagement Day on 
17th March 2017.

2) Risk Structure Guidance paper to be presented to Leadership Team on 
14th March 2017.

3) Advice to be provided to the Locality Plan Development Group to complete 
a risk register required as part of the Rochdale Transformation Fund bid.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

None Not Applicable 

Page 103



Title: Governance Arrangements 
2017/18

Public/Private: For Publication

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Regulation

Report Author: Elaine Newsome

Date: 13th March 2017

Director:    Assistant  Director(Legal, 
Governance & Workforce)

Tel: 01706 924793  

Author Email:    
Elaine.Newsome@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Key Decision: No

Comments from Statutory Officers: Monitoring Officer:  Yes
Section 151 Officer: No 

1. Purpose of Report
1.1 To provide an update on key outcomes following a review of the Council’s 

Governance arrangements.

2. Recommendation
2.1   That the Committee comments on the proposed way forward in preparation for a 

future report to Council. 

3. Reason for recommendation
3.1 Audit and Governance Committee is the appropriate forum to consult on 

proposed constitutional changes.

4. Background
4.1   The Council regularly reviews its governance arrangements, with a view to 

implementing mechanisms for the delivery of efficient and effective decision 
making.

The Member Democratic Structures Working Group is charged with developing 
proposals.  The Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee also Chairs the 
working group and will provide an update at the meeting.

4.2   Having reviewed the content of the Council’s constitution alongside decision 
making structures, the following proposals will be recommended to Council at its 
meeting on 29th March 2017:

Decision making structures

The Council has in place a Committee structure which has seen limited change 
since 2001 when Executive Decision making arrangements were introduced.  
The current structure places significant demand on Member and Officer 

Page 104

Agenda Item 11



resource. More recent legislation and guidance on decision making models 
provide opportunities to streamline the Council’s arrangements whilst enabling 
more efficient and effective decision making.

The Council has already modified its Township Committee arrangements, with 
the transfer of all Development Control matters to the Planning and Licensing 
Committee.  This was a positive step toward placing decisions with the most 
appropriate forum.

 
Cabinet have agreed in principle that particular attention should now be given 
to existing staff negotiation, employment and health and safety arrangements.  
Many local authorities have taken steps to reduce a once over-prescribed 
involvement of elected members in organisational employment and welfare 
matters, delegating operational matters to an officer level, whilst retaining 
strategic oversight and responsibility for significant organisational change. It is 
proposed that the Council should adopt a similar format.  Whilst arrangements 
will remain in place to satisfy statutory requirements, these, where possible, will 
be delegated to established officer forums.  Workforce and Governance and 
Committees Teams are collaborating on a set of proposals to take to Members 
shortly.

Expediting decisions through the use of delegated decision making is one 
aspect which the Council could make more effective use of.  Members and 
officers alike do not exercise their delegated powers to optimum effect. This is 
a particular issue with those who have Council and Executive delegations to act 
on a range of Council functions. The result being a significant number of 
operational decisions are taken by Committee/Cabinet, which impacts on the 
number and frequency of Committee meetings required to accommodate 
expanded workloads.  

           To balance changes to decision making infrastructures, the Council should also 
look to strengthen its arrangements for challenge and scrutiny.  A peer review 
in 2015 identified a number of opportunities for scrutiny to add further value to 
the work of the Council, by revisiting its operational arrangements.  Whilst there 
are no proposals to reduce the number of scrutiny committees, discussions will 
take place shortly with Scrutiny Chairs and Vice Chairs to remodel how scrutiny 
works across the organisation, with options for moving toward a strategic task 
and finish approach with heightened interaction with the Cabinet.

 
  Revisions to the constitution

A number of changes to the constitution are planned to address the proposals 
outlined.  In addition, there are some anomalies that need to be addressed 
before the start of the new municipal year and some general revisions to bring 
this core document up to date.

These include: 
 Council Procedure Rules: these need a general refresh and minor 

changes to debating practice, but will confirm a requirement for all 
questions on Member reports to Council be submitted in writing;

Page 105



 Scheme of Delegation: At present the scheme of delegation is functions based.  
This can be difficult to navigate.  This is being re-formatted and will be 
presented in future in accordance with the delegations to individual 
Committees, Members and Officers.

 Budget and Policy Framework: Existing mechanisms for budget and policy 
preparation are far too prescriptive and require excessive consultation at each 
stage in the process.  Proposals are being developed to support a robust 
process, with appropriate consultation at relevant stages.  

 Officer employment procedure rules: the review highlighted contradictory rules 
that need to be addressed.  

5. Alternatives considered
5.1 Council could opt to retain existing arrangements or suggest alternative decision 

making structures.

6. Financial Implications
6.1 None associated with this report.

7. Legal Implications
7.1 The review aims to ensure that the Council’s democratic functions accord with 

current legislative requirements.

8. Personnel Implications
8.1 None associated with this report.

9. Corporate Priorities
9.1 The changes outlined aim to improve decision making practices which have a 

positive impact on all corporate priorities.

10.  Risk Assessment Implications 
10.1 There are risks to the Council should governance arrangements not meet 

legislative or organisational need.  The review of constitutional and decision 
making arrangements aims to provide the Council with a robust democratic 
framework which would mitigate those risks.

11. Equalities Impacts
11.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Constitution of the Council

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-
democracy/councillors-and-
committees//Pages/constitution-of-the-
council.aspx 

Page 106

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees//Pages/constitution-of-the-council.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees//Pages/constitution-of-the-council.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees//Pages/constitution-of-the-council.aspx
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees//Pages/constitution-of-the-council.aspx


Page 107


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	5 Grant Thornton - Grants Letter 2015 - 16
	6 Grant Thornton  -  Rochdale Borough Council Audit & Governance Committee Progress report and update
	7 Grant Thornton - External Audit Plan 2016/17
	8 Internal Audit - Quarter 3 Report
	9 Internal Audit Plan 2017/18
	10 Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2016/17
	11 Governance Arrangements 2017/18



